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Thisform is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in National Register Bulletin, How to Complete
the National Register of Historic Places Registration Form. If any item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable." For
functions, architectural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories from the instructions.

1. Name of Property
Historic name: __Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District
Other names/site number: _DEQ763
Name of related multiple property listing:
N/A
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing

2. Location
Street & number: _Roughly bounded by Margina Street, Hickory Street and Nedly Road on the north; NC
Highway 801 South on the northeast; Center Street, Pine Ridge Road, and Holt Street on the south and the
South Y adkin River on the west.

City or town: _Cooleemee State: _NC County: _Davie

Not For Publication: Vicinity:

3. State/Federal Agency Certification
Asthe designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended,

| hereby certify that this X nomination ___ request for determination of eligibility meets the
documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the
procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the property X__ meets __ does not meet the National Register Criteria. | recommend
that this property be considered significant at the following
level(s) of significance:

___national ____statewide X local
Applicable National Register Criteria:

X_A B X _C D

Signature of certifying official/Title: Date
North Carolina Department of Cultural Resour ces
State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government
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In my opinion, the property _ meets__ does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signatur e of commenting official: Date

Title: State or Federal agency/bureau
or Tribal Gover nment

4. National Park Service Certification

| hereby certify that this property is:

__entered in the Nationa Register

___determined eligible for the National Register
__determined not eligible for the National Register
___removed from the National Register

___ other (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action

5. Classification

Owner ship of Property Category of Property

(Check only one box.) (Check as many boxes as apply.)
Building(s) Private: X
District X Public — Local X

Site Public — State

Structure Public — Federal

Object
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Number of Resour ceswithin Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
433 142 buildings
1 0 sites
6 _ 5 structures
-0 _ 0o objects
440 196 Tota

Number of contributing resources previoudly listed in the National Register N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions

(Enter categories from instructions.)
DOMESTIC: Single Dwdlling
DOMESTIC: Secondary Structure
INDUSTRY: Manufacturing Facility
INDUSTRY: Waterworks

INDUSTRY: Energy Facility

INDUSTRY: Industrial Storage
COMMERCE: Business

EDUCATION: School

RELIGION: Rdigious Facility
RELIGION: Church-related residence
FUNERARY: Cemetery

HEALTH CARE: Sanitarium
AGRICULTURE: Adgriculture Field
AGRICULTURE: Agriculture Outbuilding
AGRICULTURE: Animal Facility
TRANSPORTATION: Rail-related Freight Depot
TRANSPORTATION: Road-related Bridge
OTHER: Mill Office

Current Functions

(Enter categories from instructions.)
DOMESTIC: Single Dwelling
DOMESTIC: Secondary Structure
INDUSTRY: Industrial Storage
INDUSTRY: Waterworks
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INDUSTRY: Energy Facility

EDUCATION: School

RELIGION: Rdigious Facility

RELIGION: Church-related residence
FUNERARY: Cemetery

AGRICULTURE: Agriculture Field
AGRICULTURE: Agriculture Outbuilding
AGRICULTURE: Animal Facility
RECREATION AND CULTURE: Museum
RECREATION AND CULTURE: Outdoor Recreation
TRANSPORTATION: Road-related Bridge piers
TRANSPORTATION: Rail-related Freight Depot
SOCIAL: Civic

GOVERNMENT: Government Office
GOVERNMENT: Fire Station

OTHER: Mill Office
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7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions.)
Gothic Revivd

Colonia Revival

Bungal ow/Craftsman

Other: 1-House Dwelling

Other: L-Plan Dwelling

Heavy Timber Mill Construction
Romanesque

Other: T-Plan Dwelling

Other: Minimal Traditional
Other: Ranch house

Materials: (enter categories from instructions.)
Principal exterior materials of the property:

Foundations: BRICK
STONE
CONCRETE
Walls:; BRICK
WEATHERBOARD
VINYL
ASBESTOS
ALUMINUM
OTHER: Masonite
Roof: ASPHALT
METAL
OTHER: Membrane
OTHER: Built-up
Other: METAL
CONCRETE

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current physical appearance and condition of the property. Describe contributing and
noncontributing resources if applicable. Begin with a summary paragraph that briefly describes the general
characteristics of the property, such asits location, type, style, method of construction, setting, size, and
significant features. Indicate whether the property has historic integrity.)

Summary Paragraph
Located in Cooleemee in south central Davie County in North Carolina’s piedmont region, the well-
preserved Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District contains nearly all of the present-day municipal town limits
and the historically developed area of the original Cooleemee Cotton Mill Company property built between
Sections 7 page 5
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1898 and 1967. Located in Jerusalem Township approximately six miles south of Mocksville, the county seat
and thirteen miles northwest of Salisbury, the county seat of Rowan County, Cool eemee occupies the area
historically known as “The Shoals’—site of an antebellum river crossing and industrial complex on the South
Fork of the Y adkin River. Encompassing approximately 487 acres, the district has a street grid of two long and
two short housing blocks running north-south connected by two east-west streets in the north, in addition to one
long block of housing running east-west on Center and Grove streets east of Highway 801. The blocks radiate
from the expansive two- and three- story brick textile mill. Regularly spaced, mostly frame, one- and two-story
company built houses line the town’s streets. N.C. Highway 801 South runs diagonally north-south through the
district. Five other streets located on the north, south, and east perimeters of the district, though part of the mill
town’s development, are not part of the street grid. These areas are historically associated with the segregated
African American mill worker houses, the Pest House used for people with small pox and other contagious
diseases and the company farm lands.

Constructed in three distinct time periods—1898 - ca.1911, ca. 1916 - 1934, and ca.1940 - ca.1953,
Cooleemee mill houses retain arelatively high degree of architectural uniformity and historical integrity.
Consisting of 440 contributing resources, the district includes: the river, mill race, dam, the Cooleemee Cotton
Mill complex, aportion of the mill company farm which includes open farmland, two farm tenant houses and
the farm manager’ s house, six historic churches, two school facilities and the remarkably intact street grid of
mill company housing. Outside the district to the east along N.C. Highway 801 is one block of modern and
altered commercia buildings. North and east of the historic district are afew blocks of ranch houses, more
recent small residential subdivisions, and open and forested areas that are al clearly distinct from the historic
mill town. The town’s topography is rolling, descending generally downhill south and west from Marginal
Street at the northern and from Pine Ridge Road on the east down to the mill and the South Y adkin River.

7. Narrative Description

The Cooleemee Cotton Mill tract dominates the western boundary which runs just west of the west bank
of the South Y adkin River from the N.C. Highway 801 Bridge to the river’s confluence with Trestle Branch
north of the mill dam. The massive two- and three-story L-shaped textile mill and the two- and three-story
parallel rows of greige goods warehouses occupy the southern end of this area while mostly forested land lies
north from the warehouses to the mill dam. Marginal Street, the Cooleemee Elementary School property,
Hickory Street and Neely Road, and the Legion Memoria Park Cemetery land are the northern boundary. The
east boundary extends south along Highway 801 from the Legion Memorial Park Cemetery and excludes the
altered 1963 strip-commercial buildings on the west side of the road. The boundary then crosses 801 to include
two mill houses and the Pest House. Two modern ranch houses and a commercial building are to the south
followed by woodland before reaching a parsonage and the remaining mill houses on Grove and Center Streets.
This area has steep terrain inhibiting development and requiring the non-contribuitng ranch houses and
commercial building to be placed well off the road. The southern boundary extends south of a portion of the
company farm starting from the company farm manager’ s house at the end of Admill Way to the South Y adkin
River.

The majority of the town streets are arranged in aradial grid pattern fanning out to the north and east
from the mill. From west to east--Main, Davie, Erwin, Y adkin, Church, Duke, Watt, and Joyner Streets radiate
north-south from the mill complex in the southwest quadrant. N.C. Highway 801 South (formerly Old
Mocksville Road and Ford Street), a wide two-lane road, runs north-south from the southern end of the mill
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property north to Legion Memoria Park Cemetery in the northeast quadrant of the district. Marginal Street and
Cross Street follow an east-west orientation in the north-central quadrant while Grove and Center Streets run
parallel northeast from the mill east and perpendicular to N.C. Highway 801 South in the southeast quadrant.

Five outlying streets do not follow the town grid pattern and are areas associated with the historically
segregated African American community, Pest House and the company farm. Six historic dwellings which
housed African American mill workers built between 1898 and 1911 are located at the south end of Riverside
Drive (called Dam Hill prior to 1934), located just north of the dam in the district’ s northwest quadrant. The
street runs at a northeast angle intersecting with Junction Road. Hickory Street and Neely Road, located in the
northernmost area of the district near the Cooleemee Elementary School land, was the second location set aside
by the mill company for African American workers. The mill company rel ocated African American workers
from Riverside Drive to Hickory Street around 1934. Running parallel east-west, these streets intersect at the
corner lot of the circa 1905 Friendship Baptist Church. Six contributing dwellings, as well asthe African
American Friendship Baptist Church and 1952 North Cooleemee Elementary School are located here. Midway
Street which runs east from its intersection with Highway 801 to two mill houses and the Pest Housg, is located
approximately midway between the cemetery and Center Street. Holt Street and Admill Way located in the
southern and easternmost areas of the district, access portions of the Morris/Fowler Farm property which
became one of the mill company farm tractsin 1905. Admill Way intersects with Pine Ridge Road and
descends north-south to the former Farm Manager’ s House. Holt Street intersects with Center Street then runs
north-south to amill company dwelling. Unlike the rest of Cooleemee’s streets, Admill Way and Holt Street are
curvilinear in form.

All of the street names except Riverside Drive, Neely Road, N.C. Highway 801 South, Midway Street,
Holt Street, and Admill Way are shown on the December 1928 Map of Cooleemee drawn by T. Hutchins for the
company. A later map by Hutchins drawn September, 1934 records the name of Dam Hill changed to Riverside
Drive and the addition of the yet unnamed Hickory Street and Admill Way. North Carolina Highway 801 on the
1934 map followed Marginal Street from its intersection at the former site of the baseball park where
Cooleemee Elementary School is now located, west to its intersection at Main Street, then south to the Bridge
Street intersection and the former entrance to town’s commercial district called “The Square” where the
present-day finished goods warehouse now stands. In 1942, the State rerouted N.C. Highway 801 South aong
Old Mocksville Road to bypass the mill and the mill town proper. The plan relocated Old Mocksville Road
from itsintersection with Grove Street to merge with Ford Street before crossing the new South Y adkin River
Bridge which replaced the Bridge Street/N.C. Highway 801 metal-truss bridge in 1942. Two original stone
abutments remain intact. The current street addresses issued in 1995 by Davie County reversed the original
town numerical system which numbered houses chronologically starting at number “1” closest to the mill and
ascending to the north and east with even numbered houses located on the right side of the street and odd
numbered houses on the left. Some of the houses still retain the old house numbers on their front elevations.

The Cooleemee Cotton Mill renamed Erwin Cotton Mill Company: No. 3 in 1906, standson alarge
tract of land in the southwest quadrant of the district. Designed by engineers, Ladshaw and Ladshaw, the three-
story heavy-timber and brick main mill or cotton mill, built from 1899 to 1900, fronts Main Street and features
afive-story Romanesgue-style central tower and two four-story end towers. [Ladshaw blueprints, THC] Davie
County tax records, historic photographs and blueprints, and the 1928 and 1934 Hutchins maps indicate the
original mill complex consisted of athree-story cotton mill, one-story cloth room, three-story machine
shop/picker room, engine room, boiler room, dye house, warehouse, dam, mill office and freight depot.
[Rumley Database; Blueprint and Photograph Collections, THC] The company continued to expand the factory
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following the 1934 map--adding the two- and three-story greige goods warehouses north of Bridge Street in
1938; connecting the cotton mill with the cloth room in 1939 with the one-story finishing plant; then
constructing the two-story finished goods warehouse and finishing plant addition at the site of the former Town
Squarein 1963. [Blueprint and Photograph Collection, THC; Blueprint Collection; SCY] The present day L-
shaped configuration is shown in the Factory Insurance Association plan dated 1967 and in aerial photographs
taken between 1967 and 1969. [Photograph Collection, THC; Factory Insurance Plans;, SCY] The original
cotton warehouses a ong the mill race on the west side of the cloth room and the historic grist mill no longer
survive. The mill office, gate house, and payroll office (formerly cotton buying office) located in front of the
cotton mill and greige goods warehouse face Main Street and remain in good condition. According to recent
architectural surveys, the total square footage of the mill complex is approximately 600,000 square feet.
[Blueprint Collection, THC]

The Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District contains six historic churches situated on prominent sitesin
the north and central quadrants. The 1925 Church of the Good Shepherd Episcopa Church executed in the
Gothic Revival-style stands at the northeast intersection of Church Street and Cross Street just south of the
bungalow vicarage and Craftsman-style Four Square Mill Manager’ s House. The 1932 Cooleemee United
Methodist Church executed in the Colonia Revival-style, sits a a high point aong the east side of Main Street
midway between the mill and the Main Street/Margina Street intersection. The 1945 Cooleemee Presbyterian
Church, another Gothic Revival-style brick structure, islocated on the northeast corner of Watt and Cross
Streets while the Colonial Revival-style First Baptist Church of Cooleemee built in 1949, occupies alarge lot on
the north side of Marginal Street directly across from the Duke Street/Marginal Street intersection. The most
recent church in the district is the 1955 Gothic-style Cooleemee Church of God. On the corner of Nedly Road
facing N.C. Highway 801 South, the brick church is at the northernmost district boundary directly across from
the Legion Memorial Park Cemetery. One block east of the Cooleemee Church of God is the oldest religious
structure in the district, the circa 1905 frame Friendship Baptist Church moved in 1934 to its present site on the
southwest corner of Hickory Street and Neely Road.

Two historic school buildings contribute to the Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District--the Cooleemee
Elementary School, located on the northeast corner of Marginal Street and N.C. Highway 801 on the former
grounds of the Cooleemee Baseball Park and the North Cooleemee Elementary School on Neely Road built by
the Davie County School System in 1952 as a segregated school for African American students. The Cooleemee
Elementary School includes the 1972 one-story facility and the contributing 1948 two-story brick gymnasium.
The gymnasium building which aso housed a cafeteria, library, and classrooms for the home economics and
industrial shop classes has a combination of front-gable and flat built-up roofs and sits west of the modern
school on Marginal Street. The new school replaced the 1923 school building which was torn down in 1974,
The Cooleemee Fire Department built in 1987 now occupies this site. The one-story brick North Cooleemee
Elementary School with its H-shaped plan and gable-roof construction retains much of its original appearance.
The structure, which replaced a two-room, frame, Rosenwald school, occupies alarge open lot adjacent to the
west of the Friendship Baptist Church.

Another historic community facility is the 1949 Cooleemee Recreation Center Bathhouse and adjacent
Olympic-size, in-ground concrete pool located southeast of the 1923 former Mill Manager’ s House/Cooleemee
Recreation Center between Church and Duke Streets. Designed by engineers Piatt and Davis of Durham, N.C.,
the one-story concrete masonry bathhouse with hip-roof, features a recessed front gable-roof entry porch and
pool-side gable-roof porch. At the center of the seven-acre Cooleemee Recreation Center property, is the two-
story brick-veneer Craftsman-style Mill Manager’ s House, home to the Textile Heritage Center and Town of
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Cooleemee Recresation Center office. Located on one of the highest elevationsin the district and surrounded by
an expansive lawn and large deciduous shade trees, the three-bay, three-pile residence has a foursgquare form,
hip-roof, second-floor hip-roof dormers, and full-length front porch with Tuscan columns facing Church Street.
The Cooleemee Police Department occupies the similarly designed two-story brick Craftsman-style Caretaker’s
House situated northeast of the Mill Manager’s House. Other amenities on the site include: a modern tennis
court, playground, and basketball court aong the property’s north lot line next to Marginal Street and apicnic
shelter, horseshoe pit, and one-story frame “cook shack” built by the mill company circa 1946 along the south
lot line just north of the Church of the Good Shepherd vicarage.

District landscape features includes two historical natural areas, “ The Holler” which bisects the district
south of Cross Street between the rear lot lines of houses along Duke Street and Davie Street and “Riverside
Park” aso known as “Park Hill,” the town’s original playground and recreation arealocated on the west side of
Main Street across from the Cooleemee United Methodist Church. The Holler and Park Hill areas are now part
of the Town of Cooleemee’ s eighty-acre “RiverPark” property. Concrete sidewalks run along Marginal Street
and Main Street. All of the streets are paved asphalt except Admill Way which is gravel. Some of the lots with
steep slopes have brick, concrete and/or stone retaining walls at the edge of the street and in the side and back
yards. Overdl, the district has ample mature deciduous shade trees and evergreen trees.

The magjority of the land within the Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District is devoted to residentia use.
Laid out along the town’ s street grid, most of the one- and two-story mill company houses have lots
approximately 70 feet by 150 feet with compact front yards, narrow side yards and relatively deep back yards
many of which still retain origina smokehouses and car sheds. [Rumley, p. 139] The repetition of similar house
types positioned near the street creates a harmonious rhythm of form, massing, and materials. Therolling
topography of the landscape, the mix of churches and open space, and the larger two-story I-Houses,
bungalows, and other house types adds variety to the densely devel oped community. Most of the one- and two-
story houses are wood-framed, three-bays wide, and double-pile, with front- and side-gable roofs, brick interior
chimneys, shed-roofed porches and rear shed- and gable-roofed ells. The one-story, single-pile smokehouses
and car sheds are also wood framed with weatherboard and shed or front-gable roofs. All of the houses, except
for afew brick veneer Craftsman and Colonial Revival-style residences, feature weatherboard, brick pier
foundations, sash windows, and paneled doors. Typical renovationsinclude: aluminum, Masonite, vinyl, brick
veneer, and asbestos siding; asphalt and metal roofing; concrete or brick foundation underpinning; wood or
vinyl replacement windows; aluminum or vinyl shutters; metal awnings; cast metal or new wood porch posts
and railings; and concrete or new wood porch floors. Some residents have added shed roof and gabl e-roof
additions, decks, enclosed porches, and noncontributing outbuildings for additional living and storage space
located primarily to the side or rear of the dwellings.

Cooleemee Mill Company houses fall generally into twelve house types designated A through L and two
outbuilding types designated M and N built in three distinct time periods. The earliest houses, built from 1898
to 1911 and ca. 1901-1905 (Type H), are single-story front- and side-gable L- and T-plan residences; one-story,
six-room cross-gable-roof houses, two-story I-house dwellings, and the one-story frame meat storage
outbuildings referred to historically as “smokehouses.” These properties comprise approximately two-thirds of
the inventory. From 1916 to 1934, the company constructed five Craftsman-style bungalows; three one-story,
Craftsman-style, clipped-front-gable-roof supervisor houses near the end of Center Street; and eight one-story
front-gable roof houses built for African American workers on Hickory Street. Beginning in the 1940s and up
until the sale the of company houses in 1953, the company built one-story, Minimal Traditional style housesto
replace earlier T- and L-plan houses that had burned, four Minimal Traditional supervisor houses at the east end
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of Center Street; and two-story, Colonial Revival-style upper management residences along Marginal Street.
Also during the mid and later construction periods beginning as early as 1920, the mill company built one-story,
one- and two-bay “car sheds’ as more and more employees purchased automobiles and trucks. Many of these
structures still survive and arein use today.

The one-story L- and T-plan gable-roof houses dominate the district. While there is some mixing of
house types throughout the district, long rows of identical house types equally spaced from each other and the
street give the district its characteristic rhythm and form. The side-gable T-plan house type is the principa form
used on Riverside Drive, Grove, Duke, and Watt Streets whereas the L-plan, front-gable form is found on Main,
Davie, Joyner, and Y adkin Streets. The larger homes tend to be concentrated in certain areas of the district. The
early-period, two-story |-Houses are situated closest to the mill along present day N.C. Highway 801 (formerly
Ford Street on the 1934 map) and at the southern end of Duke Street. The later-period Craftsman, Front-gable
African American mill houses, Minimal Traditional and Colonial Revival-style houses were built on the
outskirts of the town along Marginal Street, Hickory Street, Church Street, and at the east end of Center Street.
[Rumley Database, THC; Hutchins Maps, 1928 and 1934, THC; Mohney, p. 175]

The following descriptions of the twelve house types and two outbuilding types include origina forms,
designs, materials, and architectural elements aswell as specific examples and circa dates of construction.

House Type A--T-Plan (1898-ca. 1911): aone-story, three- or four-bay wide, single-pile mill house with side-
gable roof and aone- or two-room rear gable-roofed ell. The entire house block has a T-plan with side- and
rear-gable roof ridges joining at the same height at the center interior double-flu brick chimney. Therear el is
slightly off center. Originally the house had plain weatherboard, six-over-six or four-over-four sash windows,
brick foundation piers, rear kitchen el brick flue, and louvered attic vents in the gable ends. The three-quarter
engaged front porch has a shed roof, four-inch square wood posts, plain wooden railing, two-inch square
pickets, tongue-and-groove pine board flooring, and bead-board ceiling. Front rooms are accessed from the
porch by two symmetrically-placed exterior doors, or a center door and foyer. Some dwellings of this type were
duplexes and one front door was removed when the residence was converted to a single-family home. Original
front doors are five-to-six panels. Wood doors dating after 1953 but during the period of significance are two-
to-three panels with a six-to-nine-pane window above. Rear porches were enclosed in 1930 to accommodate
bathrooms when the mill company built the central water and sewer system replacing individua privies.

Common alterations include: Vinyl or aluminum siding, wood or vinyl replacement windows and/or
doors, brick or concrete block foundation or underpinning, concrete slab porch floor, cast metal porch posts and
railing, screened-in or enclosed porch, and rear gable- or shed-roof additions, and/or deck. Original wood roof
shingles were replaced primarily with asphalt shingles. Some chimneys were removed above the roof line when
the house was converted to central heating and air conditioning. Most alterations post-date 1953 when the mill
company sold the houses to individual home buyers.

123 houses fall into this category. Representative examples include 133 Grove Street, 124 Center Street, and
158 Duke Street.

House Type B--1-House (1898-ca. 1911): atwo-story, three- or four-bay wide, single-pile six-to-seven room I-

House with side-gable roof and one-story, two-room rear gable-roofed ell. The dwelling has a center interior

double-flu brick chimney. Originally the house had plain weatherboard, six-over-six or four-over-four sash

windows, brick foundation piers, rear kitchen el brick flue, and louvered attic ventsin the gable ends. The

three-quarter front porch has a shed or hipped roof, four-inch square wood posts, plain wooden railing, two-inch

square pickets, tongue-and-groove pine board flooring, and bead-board ceiling. Front rooms are accessed from
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the front porch by two symmetrically-placed exterior doors, or a center door and foyer. Some dwellings of this
type were duplexes and one front door was removed when the residence was converted to asingle-family home.
Original front doors are five-to-six panels. Wood doors dating after 1953 but during the period of significance
are two-to-three panels with a six-to-nine-pane window above. Rear porches were enclosed in 1930 to
accommodate bathrooms when the mill company built the central water and sewer system replacing individual
privies.

Common alterations include: Vinyl or aluminum siding, wood or vinyl replacement windows and/or
doors, brick or concrete block foundation or underpinning, concrete slab porch floor, cast metal porch posts and
railing, screened-in or enclosed porch, and rear gable- or shed-roof addition, and/or deck. Origina wood roof
shingles were replaced primarily with asphalt shingles. Some chimneys were removed above the roof line when
the house was converted to central heating and air conditioning. Most alterations post-date 1953 when the mill
company sold the houses to individual home buyers.

Twenty fall into this category. Representative examplesinclude 109 Center Street and 262 Duke Street.

House Type C--L-Plan (1898-ca. 1911): aone-story, three-bay wide, mill house with front and side-gable
roofs, and a one- or two-room rear gable-roofed ell. The house’'s main block has an L- plan with front-, side and
rear-gable roof ridges joining at the same height at the center interior double-flu brick chimney. Originally the
house had plain weatherboard, six-over-six or four-over-four sash windows, brick foundation piers, and rear
kitchen el brick flue. Gable ends feature distinctive arched, louvered attic vents and scalloped or flared
bargeboards. The three-quarter engaged front porch has a shed-roof with hip-corner, four-inch square wood
posts, plain wooden railing, two-inch square pickets, tongue-and-groove pine board flooring, and bead-board
celling. Front rooms are accessed from the front porch by an off-center exterior door. Origina front doors are
five-to-six panels. Wood doors dating after 1953 but during the period of significance are two-to-three panels
with a six-to-nine-pane window above. Rear porches were enclosed in 1930 to accommodate bathrooms when
the mill company built the central water and sewer system replacing individual privies.

Common alterations include: Vinyl or aluminum siding, wood or vinyl replacement windows and/or
doors, brick or concrete block foundation or underpinning, concrete slab porch floor, cast metal porch posts and
railing, screened-in or enclosed porch, and rear gable- or shed-roof additions, and/or deck. Original wood roof
shingles were replaced primarily with asphalt shingles. Some chimneys were removed above the roof line when
the house was converted to central heating and air conditioning. Most alterations post-date 1953 when the mill
company sold the houses to individual home buyers.

150 houses fall into this category. Representative examplesinclude 130 Center Street, 181 Cross Street and 118
Erwin Street.

House Type D—Cross-Gable Roofs (1898- ca.1911): aone-story, three-bay wide, six-room house with two
cross-gable roofs. This house type combines two Type C houses constructed back-to-back to create alarger
dwelling or possibly a duplex. The floor plan features a center hall through to the shed-roof rear porch and an
interior brick chimney. Originally the house had plain weatherboard, six-over-six or four-over-four sash
windows, brick foundation piers, and rear kitchen brick flue. Gable ends feature distinctive arched, louvered
attic vents and scalloped bargeboards. The three-quarter engaged front porch has a shed-roof with hip-corner,
four-inch sguare wood posts, plain wooden railing, two-inch square pickets, tongue-and-groove pine board
flooring, and bead-board ceiling. Original front doors are five-to-six panels. Wood doors dating after 1953 but
during the period of significance are two-to-three panels with a six-to-nine-pane window above. Side porches
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were enclosed in 1930 to accommodate bathrooms when the mill company built the central water and sewer
system replacing individua privies.

Common alterations include: Vinyl or aluminum siding, wood or vinyl replacement windows and/or
doors, brick or concrete block foundation or underpinning, concrete slab porch floor, cast metal porch posts and
railing, screened-in or enclosed porch, and/or deck. Origina wood roof shingles were replaced primarily with
asphalt shingles. Some chimneys were removed above the roof line when the house was converted to central
heating and air conditioning. Most aterations post-date 1953 when the mill company sold the houses to
individual home buyers.

One house at 187 Cross Street falls into this category.

House Type E--Craftsman-style Clipped-Front-Gable Roof (ca. 1928-1934): aone-story, three-bay wide, three-
pile, five-to-six room dwelling built for factory foremen or “section hands.” Built in the Craftsman style with
clipped front-gable roof, large rear hipped-roof, triangular roof brackets, diamond pattern open brick foundation
vents, double-panel front-gable louvered attic vent, and large exterior brick chimneys. Originally the house had
plain weatherboard, six-over-six windows, brick foundation, and rear kitchen brick flue. Original front porches
are three-quarter to full-width with hipped-roof, tongue-and-groove board flooring, four-inch square wood
posts, and bead-board ceiling. Doors are three panel s with six-pane windows above. One porch was replaced
with acirca 1940-1950 front stoop with concrete slab floor and hipped-roof.

Common alterations include: Vinyl or aluminum siding, wood or vinyl replacement windows and/or
doors, concrete slab porch floor, cast metal or decorative porch posts and/or railing, screened-in or enclosed
porch, and/or deck. Original wood roof shingles were replaced primarily with asphalt shingles. Most alterations
post-date 1953 when the mill company sold the houses to individual home buyers.

Three houses at 186, 217, and 219 Center Street fall into this category.

House Type F--Front-Gable Roof (ca. 1928-1934): aone-story, three-bay wide, double-pile, four-room
dwelling with front-gable roof built for African American mill workers. Features include an interior dual-flue
brick chimney, plain weatherboard, six-over-six sash windows, and brick foundation piers. The house has a
three-quarter width off-center front porch with off-set front-gabl e roof, tongue-and-groove board flooring, four-
inch square wood posts, plain wood railings, two-inch square pickets, and bead-board ceiling. Doors are three
panels with six-pane windows above. Front rooms are accessed from the front porch by an off-center exterior
door.

Common alterations include: Vinyl, brick-veneer or aluminum siding, wood and/or vinyl replacement
windows and/or doors, brick or concrete block foundation or underpinning, concrete slab porch floor, cast metal
porch posts and railing, screened-in or enclosed porches, and rear gable- or shed-roof additions and/or deck.
Original wood roof shingles were replaced primarily with asphalt shingles and some chimneys removed above
the roof lines as homes converted to central heating and air conditioning systems. Most aterations postdate
1953 when the mill company sold the houses to individual home buyers.

Eight houses fall into this category with 168 Hickory Street being a representative example.

House Type G--Bungalow (ca.1916-1931): aone-and one-half-story, three-bay wide bungalow. These five-to-

six room Craftsman-style houses have an upper story with alarge shed- or gable-roofed front dormer and small

shed- or gable-roofed rear dormer. This type includes the following architectural details. deep roof overhangs,

exposed rafter ends, gable-roof and dormer brackets, upper-story and dormer cedar shake siding, molded
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German siding or brick exterior, nine-over-one and/or six-over-six sash windows, full glass twelve-to-fifteen
pane wooden front door, and exterior brick chimney. Built as parsonages for the four white Protestant
dominations--Methodist, Baptist, Presbyterian, and Episcopal, and for amill superintendent, these dwellings
feature engaged full-width shed-roof porches, tapered square or Tuscan wood columns on brick piers or full
height brick columns, wide brick or concrete steps, tongue-and-groove board flooring and bead-board ceiling.

Common Alterationsinclude: Vinyl siding, wood and/or vinyl replacement windows and/or doors,
concrete slab porch floors, screened-in or enclosed porches, and rear additions and/or deck. Original wood roof
shingles were replaced with asphalt shingles or metal. Most alterations postdate 1953 when the mill company
sold the houses to individual home buyers or the churches.

Five houses fall into this category with 141 Church Street being a representative example.

House Type H--1-House (ca. 1901-1905): atwo-story, three-bay wide, single-pile, seven-to-eight room mill
house with side-gable roof and aone- or two-story gable-roof rear ell with pantry and side porch. These large
homes built for the town doctor, banker, and department store manager, have an I-House vernacular house form,
center front entrance, and center-hall plan. Thereis an off-center interior brick chimney and kitchen ell brick
flue. Origina featuresinclude: tongue-and-groove board flooring, four-inch square posts, plain wood railing,
two-inch pickets, plain weatherboard, six-over-six sash windows, diamond shaped louvered gable attic vents
and brick foundation with open brick vents. Front porches have full- or three-quarter width shed or hipped-roof.
Original doors are five-to-six panel. Wood doors dating after 1953 but during the period of significance are two-
to-three panels with a six-to-nine-pane window above or twelve-to-fifteen-pane full-glass front wooden door.

Common Alterationsinclude: Vinyl or aluminum siding, wood and/or vinyl replacement windows
and/or doors, concrete slab porch floors, screened-in or enclosed porches, and rear additions and/or deck.
Original wood roof shingles were replaced with asphalt shingles or metal. Most aterations postdate 1953 when
the mill company sold the houses to individual home buyers.

Three houses fall into this category at 132, 144, and 154 Church Street.

House Type I—Simple, front gable roof (ca.1940-1953): aone-story, three-bay wide, five-room mill company
house with front-gable roof. The home has a symmetrical fagade and nearly-square form. Built to replace earlier
mill houses that had been lost by fire, the dwellings had ample closet space, attic storage with pull-down stair,
pantry, and side porch with gable roof. Original featuresinclude interior brick chimneys, brick foundations,
three-panel front doors with three-pane windows above, six-over-six sash windows, six-over-six front room
double-windows, asphalt roof shingles and flush-gable eaves. An off-centered, one-bay wide, front stoop with
gable roof accesses the front room and features a concrete dab floor and four-inch square wood posts.

Common alterationsinclude: Vinyl, asbestos, brick veneer or aluminum siding; replacement wood
and/or vinyl windows and/or doors; screened-in or enclosed porches; metal roofs and rear additions and/or deck.
Most alterations postdate 1953 when the mill company sold the houses to individual home buyers.

Eight houses fall into this category with 106 Watt Street being a representative example.

House Type J—Minimal Traditional Mill Foreman House (ca. 1940-1953): a one-story, four-bay wide, double-
pile, mill foreman’s (*section man”) house. This house has an irregular form characterized by an off-center
engaged, shed-roofed porch, recessed side-gabled wing on the side elevation with afront-gabled wing on the
opposite elevation. Features include German-lap siding or weatherboards, asphalt shingle roof, six-over-six sash
windows, brick foundation, and center interior brick chimney.
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Common alterations include: Aluminum and asbestos siding, replacement vinyl and/or wood windows
and/or doors, concrete slab porch floor, screened-in or enclosed porch, and rear additions and/or deck. Most
alterations postdate 1953 when the mill company sold the houses to individual home buyers.

Two houses fal into this category--198 and 205 Center Street.

House Type K—Minimal Traditional Mill Foreman House (ca.1940-1953): aone-story, two-bay wide, six-
room mill company house with front-gable roof, recessed gable-roof side-wings, rear side-gable roof wing, and
off-set gable-roof side porch on the side wing gable end. The home has an asymmetrical fagcade and form. Built
for mill foreman (“section man”), the dwelling features include two panel front doors with twelve-pane window
above, six-over-six sash windows, brick front stoop, interior brick chimneys, brick foundations, German-lap
siding or weatherboards, asphalt roof shingles and flush-gable eaves.

Common dterationsinclude: Vinyl or aluminum siding; vinyl windows, modern entry doors; screened-
in or enclosed porches; metal roofs and rear addition and/or deck. Most alterations postdate 1953 when the mill
company sold the houses to individual home buyers.

Two houses fal into this category--197 and 208 Center Street.

House Type L--Colonial Revival-style Supervisor House (ca. 1929, 1933, 1947, 1951): atwo-story, three-bay
wide, double-pile dwelling with side-gable roof, a one-story gable-roofed rear ell, and one-story hipped-roofed
side porch wings. Built for mill company supervisors, thistype has a symmetrical fagade, rectangular form,
center-hall plan with alarge interior or exterior brick chimney and rear brick kitchen flue. Features include
weatherboard or brick exterior, six-over-six sash windows, six-panel front door, wide brick front steps, tongue-
and-groove flooring, arched wood louvered attic vents, and brick foundation with diamond-pattern open-brick
foundation vents. Front entries include a full-width porch with hipped-roof, grouped posts, and simple wood
pickets and railing; Classical Revival-style entry porticos with gable-roof, arch, and square or round wood
columns; and a Classica Revival-style recessed stoop with square wooden panels, applied arched pediment and
fluted pilasters.

Common alterationsinclude: Vinyl siding, replacement vinyl windows, screened-in or enclosed
porches, and rear- and side-room additions and/or deck. Most alterations postdate 1953 when the mill company
sold the houses to individual home buyers.

Four houses at 254, 264, 276, and 296 Marginal Street fall into this category.

Type M--*Smokehouse” Outbuilding (1898- ca1911): aone-story, one- and two-bay wide wood-frame
outbuilding with shed or side-gable roof typically located in the rear of the lot. Called a*smokehouse” by
residents, the building was actually used to store garden tools and salted meat. The structure features wooden
plank or panel doors, strap metal hinges, exposed rafter ends, wooden plank floors, brick pier foundations and
weatherboards. Some have arear room accessed by a side wooden plank door. Common alterations include:
Vinyl siding, metal roof, brick or concrete block underpinning, and additions.

Eighteen outbuildings fall into this category with 163 Cross Street, 129 Davie Street, and 107 Erwin Street
having especially well preserved examples.

Type N--“Car Shed” Outbuilding (ca. 1920-1953): a detached one-story, one- or two-bay wide, wood-frame
garage with shed or front-gable roof typically located in the rear corner of the lot close to thelot line. The
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building features double wood plank doors, dirt floor, strap metal hinges, wood arch opening, exposed rafter
ends and weatherboard. Common alterations include: Vinyl and asphalt siding, metal roof, brick or concrete
block underpinning, concrete floor, plywood or metal replacement doors and additions.

Fifty-three outbuildings fall into this category with 130 and 186 Center Street, 123 Duke Street, and 122 Joyner
Street being especially well preserved examples.

Inventory List

The following references were used in preparing the inventory list: Five North Carolina Preservation
Office architectural survey files for specific properties within the Cooleemee Cotton Mill Town Historic
District; published local histories and archaeological surveys; and interviews with local residents, Town of
Cooleemee officias, and directors of the Cooleemee Historical Association. The dates of construction were
derived from Davie County tax and deed records, historic maps, original blueprints, historic photographs, State
Bureau of Labor and Printing company documents, Factory Insurance Plans, and local newspaper articles.

The historic district contains 440 contributing and 196 noncontributing resources. Sixty-eight percent of
the noncontributing resources (134) are modern outbuildings or structures. The remaining sixty-two
noncontributing resources are houses or other primary resources. All of the contributing resources were
originaly on mill company land with the vast majority being built by the company during the period of
significance. Although most of the houses have some modern renovations such as replacement siding, porch
materials, and rear additions, the houses retain their historic forms and scale which preserve the architectural
character and design of the original mill town. Houses and buildings classified as noncontributing are those
constructed after the period of significance or have significant alterations which affect the structure’s historic
form and appearance. Other noncontributing resources mainly include storage buildings or other types of
outbuildings built after 1969 and do not contribute to the historical or architectural character of the district.

Theinventory list is organized alphabetically by street with resources listed in ascending order by
address number. Basic information is given for all properties in the Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District.
Each entry includes property name, address, approximate date of construction, contributing or noncontributing
status, property type, and information on architectural features not detailed in the respective house and
outbuilding type description. Individualized entries for one-of-a-kind houses that do not follow the standard
house typology and other properties such as the cotton mill, churches, and school buildings, contain basic
information and longer descriptions that detail the property’s particular architectural and historic characteristics.
In the outbuilding entries “C” denotes contributing resources, and “N” is for noncontributing resources. All
outbuildings are classified as buildings, unless otherwise noted. This nomination and the inventory entries are
based on field recordings and research undertaken between January 2012 and April 2014.

ADMILL WAY

Company Farm Manager’s House ca. 1887 Contributing Building
203 Admill Way

The company farm manager’ s house is a two-story, three-bay, single-pile I-House with one-story, two-room, gable-roof
rear ell. The center brick chimney has been removed above the roof line but the dwelling retains two interior brick flues
and an interior brick chimney in the rear ells. The structure has vinyl siding over weatherboards but retainsits origina six-
over-six sash windows and six-panel front door. The house sits on a brick foundation. The three-quarter width front porch
has a shed roof with hipped-corners, simple wood railing and pickets, modern wood posts, and pine board flooring. A
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two-story gable-roof rear ell and attached two-bay gable-roof garage have been added.

Originally part of the 596-acre Morris-Fowler Farm purchased in 1905 by the mill company, the farmhouse and barns sit
on afive-acrelot surrounded by approximately 370 acres of open cultivated farmland and some modern single family
home devel opment. Approximately twenty acres north of the farmhouse included in the district.

Barn C ca. 1887
Two-story, frame, with front-gable roof and open hayloft; flat and arched wood openings; weatherboard; metal roof;
combination dirt and concrete slab floor; brick and wood post foundation

Dairy milk parlor C ca. 1940
One-story, side-gable roof, concrete block building with two-pane winged-sash windows, concrete floor and metal
roof

Silo C ca. 1940
Metal cylindrical grain silo with dome roof

Silo C ca. 1940
Metal cylindrical grain silo with dome roof

Silo C ca. 1940
Metal cylindrical grain silo with dome roof

Silo C ca. 1940
Metal cylindrical grain silo with dome roof

Dairy milk parlor C ca. 1940
One-story, side-gable roof, concrete block building with two-pane winged-sash windows, concrete floor, and metal
roof

Shed N ca. 1980
Side gable tractor shed with concrete floor, board and batten vertical wood siding, and asphalt shingle roof
Barn N ca. 1990

Front gable horse barn with vertical board and batten wood siding and asphalt shingle roof

CENTER STREET

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building

106 Center Street

Type B; Front porch has cast metal porch posts, pickets, and railing. Vinyl siding, shutters, modern panel front door; vinyl
windows and brick foundation added.

Shed/Shop C ca. 1898
One-story, one-room with side-gable metal roof, weatherboards, three over three single sash windows, board and
batten door with strap metal hinges

Storage Building N ca. 1990
One-story, one-room outbuilding with gambrel roof and concrete-block foundation piers

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
109 Center Street

Sections 7 page 16



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District Davie County, NC
Name of Property County and State

Type B; asbestos siding, vinyl windows and brick underpinning have been added; one-story, hipped-roof rear wing
addition

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building

123 Center Street

Type A; Front porch has concrete slab porch floor and cast metal posts. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, shutters, new front
door; front picture window with four-over-lights, and concrete block foundation have been added. The house has an
enclosed back porch, rear addition with shed roof, rear wood deck with handicap ramp and an attached one-car aluminum
carport with flat-roof on the east side. Asphalt driveway and a concrete walkway

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
124 Center Street
Type A; Front porch has concrete slab porch with cast metal posts and railing. Aluminum siding, shutters, awnings, vinyl

windows, and concrete block foundation have been added. The rear porch is enclosed and accessed by a wood deck with
handicap ramp.

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
Type M; Masonite siding
Carport N ca. 1970 Structure

Two-car carport with round steel posts, front gable metal roof and frame exterior wall on one side

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
129 Center Street

Type C; Front porch has cast metal porch posts, railings and new wood floor. Modern front door, aluminum siding,
shutters, vinyl windows, metal awnings, and brick foundation added. Concrete steps and walkway

Storage Building N ca. 1980
One-story, one-room, open-frame storage building on concrete block foundation piers; front-gable roof and wood
paneling and particle-board siding

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
130 Center Street

Type C; Front porch has cast metal porch posts. Wood handicap ramp covers the front brick steps; Vinyl siding, brick
foundation, vinyl windows, and canvas awnings have been added; Concrete walkway

Storage Building C 1898-ca.1911
One-story, one-room frame workshop/storage building with side gable metal roof, panel front door, screened-in shed
porch, wood-plank floor, weatherboards and concrete block foundation piers

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
TypeM
Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
TypeN
Mill House 1898 - ca. 1911 Contributing Building
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134 Center Street

Type A; Vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, brick foundation and new front door have been added. The back porchis
enclosed and arear-end gable-roof addition added. A small attached storage room is located on the rear foundation wall.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
135 Center Street

Type A; Front porch has new wood floor boards, cast metal posts and railing. Concrete front steps, Masonite siding, new
sash windows with storms, and concrete block foundation underpinning added.

Shed N ca. 1980
One-story, one-room storage building with front-gable roof, vinyl siding and concrete block foundation

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
138 Center Street

Type C; Front porch has concrete slab porch floor, cast metal posts and railing. Aluminum siding, shutters, vinyl windows
and brick foundation have been added.

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
Type M; A frame shed roof screened-in porch has been added to the front.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; vinyl siding; shed roof carport side addition

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
139 Center Street

Type C; Front porch has cast metal posts and railing. New front door, vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, awnings, and
brick foundation added. One-story rear gable-roof and shed-roof additions, Concrete steps, walkway, and driveway

Garage N ca. 2000
One-story, two-bay detached garage with front gable roof, overhead doors, and vinyl siding

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
143 Center Street

Type A; Front porch has new wood floor boards and posts and is screened-in. Vinyl siding; Concrete steps and walkway

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; vinyl siding
Storage Building N ca. 2000

One-story, one-room metal storage building

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
144 Center Street

Type A; Front porch has concrete slab porch floor and cast metal posts. New front door, vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl
windows, and brick foundation added. One-story rear addition with shed roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
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148 Center Street

Type A; Front porch has cast metal posts and railing and concrete dab floor. Stone-veneer foundation, vinyl siding, vinyl
windows added. One-story rear gable roof addition; One-story screened-in side porch addition with gable roof and dlab
floor; Attached carport with shed roof added on west side.

Workshop N ca. 1980
One-story, one-room frame workshop building with side gable metal roof and slab floor; screened-in side porch with
large brick chimney

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
151 Center Street

Type A; concrete slab porch floor, concrete step, and cast metal posts; asbestos siding, vinyl windows, shutters, brick
foundation; one-story rear gable roof addition with side shed-roof porch, concrete floor and cast metal posts

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Attached frame open bays with shed roofs on sides; accessed via Grove Street

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
155 Center Street

Type A; concrete slab porch floor and cast metal posts; aluminum siding, modern sash wood windows with storms,
awnings, concrete block foundation; rear wood deck; one-story rear addition with shed roof

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; missing doors

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
156 Center Street
Type A; Front porch has concrete slab porch floor, turned replacement wood posts and shed roof atered to extend up to

the main ridge of the house. Masonite siding, small vinyl windows and concrete block foundation added. There are small
rear additions with shed roofs.

Wor kshop N ca. 1980
One-story, frame with front gable roof and side mounted concrete block flue; vertical wood siding with Masonite
shingle gable-end siding

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
161 Center Street
Type A; Front porch roof atered to extend nearly to the main house roof ridgeline. Front porch has new wood floor with

turned replacement posts and pickets. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows some paired, brick foundation and rear wood deck with
|attice underpinning has been added. Small one-room gable-roof addition in the rear

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
162 Center Street

Type A; concrete slab porch floor with slender columns; shed roof atered to extend up to the main roof; concrete block
foundation, vinyl siding, shutters, and vinyl windows added. One-story, full-width rear gable roof addition and east side
gable roof sunroom addition
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building

167 Center Street

Type A; Porch alterations include concrete slab porch floor with new wood posts, rails, and pickets. A small one-story
side addition with shed roof and brick foundation added.

Mill House ca. 1940-1953  Contributing Building
168 Center Street

Type I; Porch posts replaced with cast metal posts. Aluminum siding, awnings, shutters and vinyl windows added.
Asphalt driveway

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; vertical wood siding; shed roof side porch addition

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building

175 Center Street

Type A; Altered; house with a side gable-roof addition; Porch alterationsinclude concrete slab porch floor and new wood
square posts. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows and brick foundation added. The shed roof and porch have been extended to
full width of the house. Other additions include a one-story rear gable roof addition with wood deck, an attached carport
with shed roof over the concrete driveway, and front elevation roof dormers added to main roof.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; vinyl siding, new door

L og cabin N ca. 1990
Reconstructed one-story, one-room cabin with shed roof front porch and novelty wood siding

Mill House 1898-ca. 1911  Noncontributing Building
179 Center Street

Type A; Altered; brick exterior veneer exterior siding added after 1969; concrete porch floor with cast metal posts

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
180 Center Street

Type B; front porch has been screened in; vinyl siding, vinyl windows, and brick underpinning added; attached auminum
carport with shed roof on side; large old growth oak tree in east side yard; House was moved from the southwest corner of
Main Street and N.C. Highway 801 (old Ford Street) between 1928 and 1934 due to flooding.

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Contributing Building
186 Center Street

Type E; Porch posts have been replaced with metal columns. Aluminum siding, shutters, and vinyl windows added. Other
additions include arear gable roof addition, side shed metal roof supported by square wood posts over a brick patio, and
rear wood deck. The hipped-roof front room additions on the side el evations were built before 1969 during the period of
significance.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Two-bay

Mill Supervisor House ca. 1940-1953  Contributing Building
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197 Center Street

Type K; cast metal railing and pickets, vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, metal awnings added; rear shed roof covered
deck; side porch enclosed

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

Type N; vinyl siding

Storage Building N ca. 1980

Large one-story frame storage building with low front gable roof and vinyl siding
Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
Two-bay front gable roof with metal posts over asphalt driveway

Wor kshop N ca. 1990

Wood framed front gable workshop on dab. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows and hollow core raised panel door. Gable
end roof brackets.

Mill Supervisor House ca. 1940-1945  Contributing Building
198 Center Street

Type J; front porch has windows and apron wall; aluminum siding and shutters added; rear wood deck

Mill Supervisor House ca. 1940-1945  Contributing Building
205 Center Street

Type J; concrete slab porch floor, cast meta porch posts and railings, asbestos siding, modern sash windows and rear
wood deck added. Front-gable side wing center windows enclosed and corner windows added

Garage N ca. 1990
One-story, one-bay frame garage with front-gable roof, vinyl siding and overhead garage door

Mill Supervisor House ca. 1940-1953  Contributing Building
208 Center Street

Type K; modern front door, aluminum siding, shutters, side shed roof porch

Office N ca. 1940-1953

One-story, one-room frame office with side gable roof, original six-pane sash windows with storms, six panel front
door with storm, center brick flue and brick foundation. The front porch with shed roof has been enclosed and
aluminum siding added.

Storage Building N ca. 1980
One-story, one-room frame storage building with gambrel roof, center double wood-plank doors with strap hinges,
and vertical wood siding on a concrete dab base.

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Contributing Building
217 Center Street
Type E; Hipped-roof brick stoop with concrete capped brick knee walls and wood louvered storm door; front east side

covered brick porch with hipped-roof and wood-louvered storm door; cast metal railing and pickets; aluminum siding,
shutters, new sash wood windows with storms added, and rear addition with integral rear gable roof

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Contributing Building

219 Center Street
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Type E; Concrete steps framed with concrete capped brick knee walls. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, shutters, rear addition
with gable roof, shed roof side stoop with concrete floor.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Two-bay

House ca. 1970-1990  Noncontributing Building
220 Center Street

One-story, side-gable brick ranch; taller center section with shed roof front porch

House ca. 1970-1990  Noncontributing Building
230 Center Street

Split Level house with front- and side-gable roofs; vertical wood board-and-batten siding with high brick foundation wall;
Side-gable roof extendsto create a carport;

Shop N ca. 1980
One-story, one-room, with front-gable roof, brick-veneer, and wood panel siding in gable end

Storage Building N ca. 1980
One-story, one-room frame with front-gable roof and wood panel siding

House ca. 1970-1990  Noncontributing Building
236 Center Street

Split Level house with front-gable and side-gabl e roofs; combination of brick and aluminum siding; high brick foundation
wall

Carport N ca. 1980 Structure
One-story, two-bay, with front-gable roof, wood panel siding over concrete driveway

Storage Building N ca. 1980
One-story, one-room frame with front-gable roof, wood panel siding, and metal overhead garage door

House ca. 1970-1990  Noncontributing Building
237 Center Street

One-story, side-gable brick ranch; taller center section with shed roof front porch

House ca. 1970-1990  Noncontributing Building

244 Center Street
One-story, side-gable brick ranch with off-set side-gable attached two-bay garage; front bay window

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
247 Center Street

Type B; vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation added. Rear west side one story addition
with gable roof has an attached shed roof covered patio with lattice siding to its rear. Large hickory trees on the expansive
lawns, Moved from # 33 Main Street (just south of Riverside Park on the west side of Main Street ) between 1963and
1967

Garage N ca. 1980
One-story, two-bay garage with front-gable roof, wood board siding, and overhead garage doors
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House ca. 1970-1990  Noncontributing Building

269 Center Street
Modern brick Split-foyer house with side-gable roof and full-width engaged front porch

Garage N ca. 1980
One-story, two-bay garage with front-gable roof, wood board siding, and overhead garage doors

CHURCH STREET

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
106 Church Street
Type C; Porch alterations include concrete slab porch floor with cast metal posts and attached wood handicap ramp. The

porch roof has been replaced with an attached shed roof extending to south corner. Vinyl siding, shutters, new sash
windows with storms and brick foundation added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; two-bay; plywood doors, vinyl siding added, attached front gable carport

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
112 Church Street

Type C; the hipped-roof porch has been extended to the corner, enclosed with vinyl windows and skirt wall and has a
concrete dab floor. Aluminum awning, vinyl siding, shutters, and brick foundation added. Concrete walk

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
116 Church Street

Type C; new porch roof extended to corner; porch screened-in and has a metal awning; Vinyl siding, shutters, stucco brick
underpinning and vinyl windows added. Asphalt driveway and concrete walk

Garage N ca. 1980
One-story, two-bay, frame garage with front-gable roof and large wood overhead garage door

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
122 Church Street

Type C; Front porch roof replaced with hipped-roof wraparound porch; rear corner addition with shed roof added,;
Porch has replacement concrete slab floor, front brick handicap ramp, south side concrete handicap ramp and square
aluminum posts; Vinyl siding, concrete block foundation, and vinyl windows added. Large old growth oak in south lawn

Cooleemee Mill Manager's House ca. 1923 Contributing Building
131 Church Street

Thistwo-story, three-bay wide, double-pile red brick Craftsman-style Four Square house is the most prominent residential
structure in the Town of Cooleemee. The expansive ten foot wide front porch wraps around from the south corner to the
northwest side forming atwelve foot wide "porte-cochere." The porch is accessed by three wide flights of concrete steps.
The porch hasits original tongue-and-groove pine board flooring, Tuscan order columns, plain pickets, molded handrail
and beadboard ceiling. A new wood handicap ramp descends from the southern front corner of the porch. Brick capped
knee walls frame the wide concrete front steps. The original one-panel front door with twelve-pane window above has
one-panel, eight-pane side lights. The one-story, one-room hipped-roof frame sunroom on the south elevation features
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German siding, six-over-one sash windows, and a three-panel exterior door with six-pane window and three-pane transom
above. The house design has symmetry with centrally located hipped-roof attic dormers on all four sides. The front
dormer has atriple six-over-one sash window. Side dormers have quadrupl e six-over-one sash windows and the rear
dormer matches the front dormer. The two rear porches on the northeast and northwest corners have original panel doors,
six-over-one sash windows, and German siding. The rear pantry between the back porchesis original and has a six-over-
one sash center window. Four banked six-over-one sash second-floor corner windows on the rear elevation fill the second
floor “sleeping porches’ with naturd light.

The stately house has a center-hall floor plan with aformal living room and dining room, kitchen, pantry, music room,
bedroom, bathroom, nursery, and sunroom on the first floor. Stairs ascend from the back of the house (east) to the second
floor center hall which accesses four large bedrooms to the north and south, a bathroom and two sleeping porchesin the
rear (east). Much of theinteriors remain original with heart pine and oak hard wood floors, moldings, panel doors, wood
mantel, and fifteen-pane French doors to the first floor music room. The kitchen was remodeled in 1948 adding new
cabinets and a dumb waiter which opens at the top of the stairs on the second floor.

The house sits at the center of afour-acre lot surrounded by an expansive lawn and old growth deciduous shade trees. The
hilltop lot overlooks the mill village surrounded by Marginal, Church, Duke and Cross Streets. The two-story, red brick,
Craftsman-style Caretaker’ s House, one-story hipped-roof, concrete block bathhouse and adjacent in-ground Olympic-size
swimming pool lieto the east and southeast of the house. Tennis courts, a basketball court, playground, and small frame
picnic shelter with front-gable roof are to the north aong Marginal Street. A large gravel parking lot, modern brick patio
and walkway serve the house to the west and southwest. A large, frame picnic shelter with gable-roof and the one-story,
front-gable roof, frame “cook shack” circa 1946 were built along the south ot line north of the Episcopal bungalow
vicarage. Six horse-shoe pits, two shuffle ball courts and awater fountain encased in stone masonry are along the west
perimeter of the lot.

Built in 1923 for Mr. James Zachary, the plant manager for the Cooleemee Cotton Mill (Erwin Mill #3), the house was
designed by architect, G. Murray Nelson of Durham and Raleigh, North Carolina, August 31, 1923. The structure replaced
the house previously occupied by Mr. Zachary when he was assistant mill manager/bookkeeper for the company. That
circa 1903 to 1905 house was moved to 244 Margina Street and is still standing today. In 1948, the mill converted the
house and lot into the Cooleemee Recreation Center. The mill company hired Durham architect, George Watts Carr to
remodel the interior of the house. The plan removed the main center stairs from the front center hall and the interior walls
between the center hall, living room and dining room creating alarge multi-use space. The music room and first floor
bedroom were combined by the removal of an interior wall and the bathroom remodeled to create separate restrooms for
men and women. The north side upstairs bedrooms were combined and used as alibrary until 1972. The facility operated
as the community recreation center until 1973 and was reopened in 1993 by the Cooleemee Historical Association asthe
Textile Heritage Center and Cooleemee Mill Village Museum which continues to operate as a public non-profit cultura
history museum showcasing the history of the Cooleemee Mill and the life of its cotton mill community. The sunroom is
now used as an office for the Town of Cooleemee Recreation Center director and the Cooleemee Police Department
occupies the Caretaker’ s house for its headquarters.

Mill Hydrant House C ca. 1923

One-story, small, frame fire pump house sits directly north of the front porch of the Mill Manager's House next to the
tennis court. The pump house features original mill fire hydrant, fire hose and nozzles, pyramidal roof, vertical plank
siding, and plank door with original hardware.

Caretaker’sHouse N ca. 1923 Seeentry for 114 Duke Street

Carports(2) N ca. 1990 2 Structures
Two, pre-fabricated two-bay metal carports with front-gable metal roofs

“Cook Shack” C ca. 1946

Built shortly before the Mill Manager's House was converted into the Cooleemee Recreation Center, the one-story,

one-room, front-gable roof, frame structure was built as an outdoor kitchen for community cookouts, events, and
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gatherings. The building features hinged awning plywood shutters, exposed rafter ends, original panel doors, a
screened-in front porch, concrete slab floor, and original German siding.

Picnic Shelter N ca. 1990
One-story, frame open shelter with concrete floor slab, brick columns, and side-gabled roof
TennisCourt C ca. 1948

Painted asphalt surrounded by a high chain linked fence

Bath House C ca. 1949 Seeentry for 124 Duke Street

Pump House C ca. 1949
One-story, one-room, concrete block pump house used to house the water pump equipment features a pyramidal roof
and origina panel door with punched metal ventilation screensin the two bottom panels.

Swimming Pool C ca. 1949 Structure

According to loca historians, the swimming pool was the first Olympic-size public pool built in Davie County. Built
to replace the “ Stone Pool” circa 1901 located on the west bank of the South Y akin River below the stone mill dam,
the partially in-ground pool features painted cast-in-place concrete construction with a wide concrete pool deck
supported by concrete foundation columns and a concrete block foundation wall.

Picnic Shelter N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, frame, open shelter with concrete floor dab, brick columns, and side-gabled roof
Storage Building N ca. 1998

A small, one-story, one-room frame storage building with front-gable roof, vertica wood siding, concrete block
foundation piers, lattice underpinning, and double wood plank doors with strap hinges

J. N. Ledford/Department Store Manager’ s House ca. 1901 Contributing Building
132 Church Street

Type H; concrete slab porch floor, modern tapered piers with wood panel bases, original central front roof gable, vinyl
siding, shutters, one-story rear addition with shed roof; asphalt drive and brick wakway; The Ledford Department Store
was opened in 1901 in atwo-story, brick building located where the present-day Finished Goods Warehouse building at
336 Main Street now stands by J. N. Ledford. One of the finest department storesin Davie County, the business continued
to operate after Mr. Ledford’ s death in 1918 until 1963 when the Town Square commercial buildings were demolished by
Burlington Industries for the expansion of the mill.

Garage C ca. 1920-1953
One-story, two-bay, front gable-roofed, frame garage with open front, vinyl siding, and concrete slab floor

Church of The Good Shepherd Vicarage ca. 1925 Contributing Building
141 Church Street

Type G; The front porch features stone capped brick piers, tapered wood piers, plain wood railing and straight pickets,
stone capped brick knee walls and steps which lead to a concrete walk connecting to the street. The house features a
Craftsman-style nine-pane front door with three vertical lower panes and six smaller panes above, nine-over-one original
sash windows, weatherboards, exterior brick chimney, porch and roof brackets, and second story wood shingle siding.
Large front and rear dormers with wood shingle siding have triple windows with double hung sashes and nine-over-one
window panes. The back porch is enclosed and a painted wood deck with stairs descends to the back yard.

Bank Manager’sHouse ca. 1901-1905  Noncontributing Building
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144 Church Street

Type H; dtered front porch enclosed with vinyl windows and apron wall; modern front door with center window;
concrete dab porch floor. Vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, metal roofing, paired windows on gable ends, one-story
rear porch addition with shed roof, wood deck with pergola added. Asphalt driveway, concrete steps and wal kway; large
old growth deciduous shade trees, The Bank of Cooleemee opened in 1905 in abrick building located on The Square
where the present-day Finished Goods Warehouse building at 336 Main Street now stands and closed during the
depression of the 1930s. This house was rented to the bank manager.

Garage C ca. 1920-1953
One-story, two-bay, frame garage with front-gable metal roof, open front, vinyl siding and concrete slab floor

Church of The Good Shepherd ca. 1925 Contributing Building
147 Church Street

The Church of the Good Shepherd Episcopal Church is abeautiful Gothic Revival-style brick church. The design features
dramatic pointed-arch lancet stone windows, stone lintels and sills, and stone-capped, two-stage corner and side brick
buttresses. Laid out in the traditional cruciform plan, the small structureisrich with fine architectural detailsincluding
origina leaded stained glass windows, date parapet gable roof, copper gutters with cross reliefs, copper ridge caps and
gable trim. A concrete walk connects the wide stone front steps and original Gothic-arch panel double entry doorsto the
street. A low granite block wall runs along the front (south) and east side lawns. At the north rear corner, amodern
covered walkway with a gable roof and metal posts connects the church to the 1912 Parish House. Old growth deciduous
tree shade the front and side lawns.

Church of the Good Shepher d—Parish House C ca 1912

In 1912, the Saint Agnes Guild women’s auxiliary raised $1,000 to build the Church of the Good Shepherd Parish
House. The one-story, front gable-roofed frame structure features a small belfry above the entry porch with a
pyramidal asphalt roof, brick foundation, double five-panel entry doors, and recessed side wings with gable roofs.
Vinyl siding and vinyl four-over-four sash windows have been added. Built into the slope, the building’ s basement
has an exposed foundation wall on the north and east sides with ten- and fifteen-pane sash windows and panel entry
door.

Dr. A. B. Byerly House ca. 1901-1905  Noncontributing Building
154 Church Street

Type H; atered front porch with enclosed with plate glass picture windows, single pane casement side lights, storm door,
and apron wall; concrete porch floor, vinyl siding, vinyl windows, shutters, two-story rear addition with shed roof, two
one-story side additions with shed roofs, two-story rear wood deck with diagonal pickets added. Old growth deciduous
shade trees, asphalt driveway, and concrete walkway. Dr. A. B. Byerly began practicing medicine in Cooleemee in 1904
at an office located on the second floor of atwo-story brick building above the Cooleemee Drug Store. The building was
located on the west side of The Square where the present-day Finished Goods Warehouse building at 336 Main Street now
stands. Doctor Byerly practiced medicine for fifty years until hisdeath in 1947.

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, two-bay pre-fabricated metal carport

CROSS STREET

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
163 Cross Street

Type C; The house was moved from Joyner Street in 2003 by the Cooleemee Historical Association to house the Mill
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Family Life Museum replacing an identical Type C house that had burned. CHA restored the structure to its origind
appearance complete with period interiors and artifacts. A wood handicap ramp accesses the back door on the south (rear)
elevation.

Smokehouse C 1898-ca. 1911
Type M; concrete block foundation piers

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
181 Cross Street

Type C; Aluminum siding, shutters, and concrete block foundation added. Rear shed-roof addition with recessed porch.
Concrete steps and walk connects to the street.

Storage Shed N ca. 1990
One-story, frame gambrel roof, plank doors with strap hinges, and vertical Masonite siding set on concrete block
piers.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building

187 Cross Street

Type D; Screened-in front porch has original square wood posts and three panel wood door with six pane window.
Aluminum siding, shutters, vinyl windows, concrete slab porch floor and stucco concrete block underpinning added. The
origina brick foundation piers and one chimney remain intact. An open wood deck with straight pickets fills the space
between the two T-plan sections on the west elevation. The back porches are enclosed.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
229 Cross Street

Type C; Altered front porch enclosed under original roof. Vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows and concrete block
underpinning added. Rear shed roof addition.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
230 Cross Street

Type C mill; Front porch has new wood floor, posts and railings. 1950s brick veneer siding, exterior chimney, sash
replacement windows, shutters added. Rear gable roof addition

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
248 Cross Street
Type C; Front porch has replacement wood floor, square wood posts, decorative pickets. Vinyl siding, front picture

window, vinyl windows and concrete block underpinning added. Rear porch enclosed and a small shed roof addition in
rear.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

Type N; Doors missing

Garage N ca. 1980

One-story, two-bay, concrete block garage on concrete lab with shed meta roof and panel overhead garage doors
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
250 Cross Street

Sections 7 page 27



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District Davie County, NC
Name of Property County and State

Type A; Front porch has replacement cast metal posts, concrete dab floor. Aluminum siding, vinyl windows, and concrete
block underpinning added. A one-story storage room addition with shed roof is located on the lower east side elevation. A
concrete walk and concrete block steps connect to the street.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
256 Cross Street

Type A; Front porch has replacement square wood posts and wood floor. Vinyl siding, concrete block underpinning and
vinyl windows added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
264 Cross Street

Type A; Front porch has replacement square wood posts, modern front door, and wood floor. Vinyl siding, vinyl
windows, concrete block underpinning added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
TypeN

DAVIE STREET

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
107 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has replacement concrete dab floor, cast meta posts, railing and pickets. Concrete block foundation,
aluminum siding and shutters added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
113 Davie Street
Type C; Front porch has cast metal posts and replacement wood floor. Vinyl siding, shutters, and concrete block

underpinning added. Window in side gable end removed and an exterior concrete block flue and two small sash windows
added. A rear addition with shed roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
114 Davie Street

Type C; Modern front door, vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation added. Low pitched
shed roof addition on side and rear

Garage N ca. 1980

One-story, two-bay, front gable-roofed frame garage with front gable carport over concrete driveway.
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
118 Davie Street

Type C; Porch alterations include new wood floor and square metal posts. Aluminum siding, shutters, metal roof, vinyl
windows, and brick foundation added.

Garage N ca. 1990
Wood frame storage building with two-bay front gable carport, vinyl siding and metal posts
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
119 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has new wood flooring and cast metal posts, railing and pickets. Aluminum siding, shutters, and brick
foundation added. Aluminum storage shed and treated wood privacy fence.

Shed N ca. 1990
Small one-story, prefabricated metal

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
124 Davie Street

Type C; Porch screened-in with concrete handicap ramp. Vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, modern front door and
concrete block underpinning added. Rear addition with shed roof; A concrete walk connects to the street.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
125 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has cast metal posts, railing and pickets and a plywood handicap ramp over the front brick steps.
Aluminum siding, shutters, sash wood windows with storms and brick foundation added. Small rear room and porch
addition with shed roof; Concrete walk connects to the street.

Mill House 1898-ca. 1911  Contributing Building

129 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has cast metal posts, railing and pickets. Vinyl siding, shutters, sash wood windows with storms, and brick
foundation added. An original smokehouse in back yard along with contemporary detached two car garage with front
gable, overhead door, and vinyl siding. Rear porch enclosed with small hipped-roof addition. Concrete driveway

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911

Type M; German siding

Garage N ca. 1990

One-story, two-bay garage with front-gable roof, overhead door, and vinyl siding over concrete driveway
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
130 Davie Street

Type C; Altered; Front porch enclosed with shed replacement roof and meta louvered windows. Vinyl siding, shutters,
replacement windows, partial brick veneer siding and concrete block foundation added. Rear gable and shed roof
additions.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; door removed.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
135 Davie Street
Type C; Porch has modern turned posts and pickets. Vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation

added. Rear door with gable-roof stoop added. Concrete walk and steps; Concrete block retaining wall separate front yard
from street.

Carport N ca. 1970 Structure
One-story, detached two-bay prefabricated metal car port with shed roof
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
136 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has cast metal posts, railing, and pickets. Aluminum siding, awnings, modern front door, vinyl windows
and concrete block underpinning added. Rear addition with shed porch

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
141 Davie Street
Type C; Porch has replacement concrete slab floor, cast metal posts, railing and pickets, and modern front door. Vinyl

siding, vinyl windows, brick foundation added. Concrete walk and steps; Concrete block retaining wall separate front yard
from street. Enclosed rear porch and new open shed roof porch, chain linked fence.

Shed N ca. 1980

One-story, frame, detached storage building with open front gable car port in rear
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
142 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has replacement concrete slab floor, cast metal posts, railing and pickets. Front porch extended to corner
with new engaged shed roof. Vinyl windows, front double window, concrete block foundation, concrete block flue,
shutters added. Rear addition with shed roof; Concrete driveway and walk connect to the street

Carport N ca. 1970 Structure

One-story, one-bay, detached metal car port with "v" posts and shed roof
Mill House 1898-ca. 1911  Noncontributing Building
147 Davie Street

Type C; Altered front porch enclosed with metal louvered windows and apron wall and roof extended to front corner.
Vinyl siding, replacement windows and concrete block foundation added. Shed roof addition in the rear.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
148 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has new wood floor and posts. Vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, concrete block underpinning and flue
added. Concrete walk connects to street.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
153 Davie Street

Type C; Altered front porch enclosed under original roof. Vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows, concrete block
foundation added. Gable roof rear addition and rear porch with shed roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
154 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has replacement wood floor, posts, and pickets. Hipped-roof extended to front corner. Vinyl siding, sash
wood windows with storms, modern front door, concrete block foundation and wood rear deck added. Concrete walk
connectsto the street.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
160 Davie Street
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Type C; Front porch has concrete slab floor, brick piers and new wood railing. 1950s brick veneer siding added during the
period of significance. Vinyl windows, modern front door, and metal awning attached to front porch roof added. Rear
enclosures

Carport N ca. 1980 Structure

One-story, one-bay, prefabricated carport with gable roof

Storage building N ca. 1980

Small one-story, frame, front gable storage building with vinyl siding
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
161 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has new wood posts, railing and pickets. Vinyl siding, shutters, sash wood windows with storms, and
concrete block underpinning added. Back porch enclosed, small hip roof addition, and awith wood deck.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
166 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has new wood posts, railing and lattice. Front porch hip roof extended to corner. Masonite siding, sash
wood windows with storms, and concrete block foundation added. Rear porch enclosed with small hip roof addition.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
167 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has cast metal posts, railing and pickets. Modern door, sash windows, shutters added. Attached two-bay
metal carport with shed roof in rear. Brick veneer was added prior to 1969.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
172 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has replacement wood floor, posts, railing and pickets. Aluminum siding, double front window, sash wood
windows with storms, brick foundation added. Rear addition with shed roof.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

TypeN
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
173 Davie Street

Type C; Porch roof replaced with engaged shed roof and concrete dab floor extended to corner. Vinyl siding, double front
window, vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation added. Rear porch enclosed with engaged shed roof addition.
Concrete walk connects to the street.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
177 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has replacement wood floor, posts, and pickets. Vinyl siding, double front window, wood sash windows,
and brick foundation added. Rear wood deck

Car Shed N ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Front enclosed with modern panel door and vinyl siding.
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
178 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch roof replaced with engaged shed roof extended to the corner and the porch is screened-in with lattice
railing. Vinyl siding, shutters, brick foundation, vinyl windows and metal roof added. Rear addition with shed roof;
Concrete driveway and walk connect to street. Low concrete retaining wall in front

Car Shed N ca. 1920-1953

Type N; Doors removed and attached front shed roof added with plywood doors.
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
182 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has cast metal posts, railing, pickets, and new wood floor. Vinyl siding, replacement windows, meta roof,
and concrete block underpinning and steps added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
183 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has replacement treated wood floor, posts, and pickets. Vinyl siding, shutters, vinyl windows,
concrete block foundation and rear wood deck added. Concrete walk to the street

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
188 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has cast metal posts, railing, and pickets. Aluminum siding, shutters, sash wood replacement
windows, brick foundation added. Brick and concrete steps lead to a stone retaining wall along the street front.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
189 Davie Street
Type A; Front porch has cast metal posts and new wood floor. Aluminum siding, replacement front door, smal sash

windows and concrete block foundation added. Rear porch enclosures appear older than others during the period of
significance with exposed rafter ends and scalloped barge boards in the gable ends—a detail found in Type C houses.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
194 Davie Street
Type C; Altered; Front porch enclosed with roof attached to main side gable roof. Vinyl siding, concrete block foundation

and front stoop with side mounted steps and lattice added. Asphalt drive; Concrete block retaining wall in front along
Street.

Storage Building N ca. 1990

Frame with particle board siding and divided doors
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
195 Davie Street

Type C; Porch screened-in with replacement concrete slab floor and new wood posts, railing, and diagonal pickets. Small
wood stoop attached to front porch. Vinyl siding, shutters, brick underpinning, replacement windows added. Rear porch
with shed roof; Low brick retaining wall along street

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, one-bay prefabricated metal carport
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
199 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has new wood posts, railing and pickets. Porch is screened-in and hipped roof replaced with engaged shed
roof extended to corner. Vinyl siding, modern front door and vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation added. Rear
enclosures and shed roof breezeway connects to outbuilding.

Outbuilding N ca. 1990
One-story, gable roof outbuilding with vinyl siding, vinyl windows and concrete block foundation

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
200 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has replacement wood floor, posts and railing with a new set of dog-leg front stairs and lattice
underpinning. Vinyl siding, concrete block underpinning and replacement sash windows added. Rear addition with shed
roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
207 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has replacement wood floor and posts. Aluminum siding, replacement vinyl windows, frame
underpinning with painted wood paneling added. Rear enclosures and wood deck; Brick and stone retaining walls on
southeast side

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
208 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch screened-in with replacement wood floor, posts, railing and lattice underpinning. Front steps descend
to the side. Vinyl siding, replacement sash windows and frame underpinning with painted wood paneling added. Rear
enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
212 Davie Street

Type C; Altered; Front porch enclosed and extended front steps on concrete block foundation descend to the side. Vinyl
siding, replacement vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation added. Wood deck attached to south side elevation.
Rear addition; Concrete block retaining wall in back and side yards.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
218 Davie Street

Type C; Porch has new wood floor, posts, railing and pickets. Masonite siding, replacement front door and vinyl
windows, concrete block underpinning and stucco added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
224 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has replacement wood floor, posts, railing and pickets. Steps rel ocated to descend to the side.
Replacement vinyl windows, modern front door, concrete block foundation added. Concrete steps connect to the street;
Rear additions with shed roofs.

Garage N ca. 1990
One-story, two-bay concrete block garage with front gable roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
Sections 7 page 33



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018

Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District Davie County, NC
Name of Property County and State
230 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has replacement wood floor, posts, railing and extended front steps descend to the side. Vinyl siding,
vinyl windows, frame underpinning with vinyl siding added; Rear enclosures and a rear addition with off-set gable roof;
Concrete steps connect to the street.

Storage Building N ca. 1990
One-story, one-room frame outbuilding with shed roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
234 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has replacement wood floor, cast metal railing, and extended front steps descend to the side. Vinyl
siding, replacement front door and vinyl windows added. Wood handicap ramp in rear; rear enclosures; older deciduous
shade trees and concrete stepsin the front yard

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
240 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has replacement wood floor, posts, railing and brick steps. Original chimney covered with vinyl.
Vinyl siding, replacement front door, replacement windows, and brick foundation added. Wood deck in rear; rear
enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
246 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch has replacement wood floor, cast metal posts and railing with brick steps. Aluminum siding and brick
foundation added. Concrete slab stoop with brick stepsin rear; rear addition with shed roof; concrete walk connects to the
Street.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
252 Davie Street

Type C; Front porch roof replaced with engaged shed roof and extend to corner. Porch has replacement wood floor, posts,
and railing. Vinyl siding, replacement sash windows, shutters and brick foundation added. Rear shed roof addition
connects back of house to carport. Concrete walk connectsto street.

Carport N ca. 1980 Structure
One-story, two-bay frame carport with shed meta roof and enclosed storage room with concrete block walls and vinyl
siding

Greige Goods War ehouses ca. 1938 Contributing Buildings (2)
262 Davie Street

The one- and three-story, four-bay Cooleemee Cotton Mill Greige Goods Warehouses are at the intersection of Davie,
Main, and Bridge Streetsimmediately north of the Cooleemee Cotton Mill cloth room and finished goods warehouse
wings. Rectilinear and horizontal in form, the warehouses consist of the one-story, four-bay south warehouse which
parallels Bridge Street and the three-story, four-bay north warehouse which sets parallel and immediately north of the
south warehouse. The four bays of the south warehouse step down in elevation at the thick, interior, brick firewalls asthe
site slopes east to west toward the South Y adkin River on its westernmost side. This configuration provides ground level
accessto each bays south-facing loading docks. The east end bay of the south warehouse has alarge metal frame, shed
roof canopy supported by metal trusses and posts spanning over its south elevation concrete loading dock. Thick, interior,
brick firewalls capped with interlocking terra cotta parapet tiles, provide afireproof barrier between bays to help prevent
the spread of fire. The firewalls extend roughly two feet above the warehouse roof which has a combination of metal,
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membrane, and tar over asphalt roofing materials. The roof is constructed of wood decking supported by heavy timber
beams and columns. The north and south exterior walls are stud-frame with corrugated metal siding. Large, south-facing,
exposed-track, sliding-doors provide access from the loading docks to the warehouse interior. The interior has concrete
dlab floors and is sprinkled.

The north warehouse has asimilar configuration as the south with four bays separated by thick, terra cotta capped
firewallsthat extend some two feet above the roof except the north warehouse bays have the same finished floor elevation
throughout. Instead of stepped bay heights, the ground level floor is built into the slope with one-story below ground on
the east and north elevations. A five-story freight elevator tower with flat metal roof located on the southwest corner of
the western most bay provides freight access to the building’ sinterior. Large, interior, metal-clad, fire-doors provide fire-
proof access between bays. The north warehouse has stud-frame exterior walls with corrugated metal siding. The north
elevation of the north warehouse has several nine-pane sash windows and the northern most bay has panel exterior doors
and a set of exterior metal stairsto thethird floor. A large, full-width, metal-frame shed roof supported by 1-beam posts
and beams is located on the east elevation facing Main Street. Interior has concrete dab ground level floors, tongue-and-
groove wood boards on the upper levels, and a sprinkler system. Built in 1938, both warehouse buildings stored greige
(undyed) goods according to the company’s 1949 Factory Insurance Plan. The 1967 Factory Insurance Plan indicates the
south warehouse being used to store cotton and the north warehouse storing finished goods, dry goods and other
miscellaneous materials. A high chain-linked fence surrounds the property.

Cotton Buying/Payroll Office C ca. 1948

Thetwo-story, brick Cotton Buying Office located at the north end of the south warehouse on the corner of Bridge
Street and Main Street has a rectangular form and a new side-gabl e, rai sed-seam, metal roof. The front elevation has a
centered eight-panel entry door with transom window above. A flight of four concrete steps flanked by concrete-
capped, stepped, brick knee-walls lead to a concrete slab stoop covered by a new, metal shed roof canopy. The entry
door has a one-course recess and is framed by two vertical bands of corbelled brick. The building has a triple four-
pane, winged-sash, metal window on the north elevation, two four-pane, winged sash, metal windows and exterior
side entry door with aflat, concrete dab roof awing, and alow-brick walled courtyard on the east side facing Bridge
Street. The south entry door and another smaller ground level window have been boarded with plywood. Builtin
1948 to showcase the company’ s products, the Cotton Buying Office featured alarge curved skylight or light scoop
with anorth facing vertical window. This supplied natural light to the upper floor showroom. The company payroll
office was a so located in the building. The skylight was removed and a modern side-gable metal-clad roof installed
in the 1980s.

Freight Depot C ca. 1899-1901

One-story, frame with side-gable roof and gable-roofed open shed side wing and L-plan. A three-quarter shed roof
porch is on the west eevation facing the mill race and former rail spur trestle which was removed in the 1970s. A
frame gable-roof open shed wing was added between 1950 and 1963. The structure features weatherboards, wood
plank floor boards, sash windows, and panel doors. The building, just west of the west end of the north greige goods
warehouse, was used for shipping out the finished goods of cloth and yarn produced by the mill. Therail spur
connecting the Cooleemee Mill to alanding along the Southern Railroad’ s Winston to Charlotte line which became
known as Cool eemee Junction was completed in October 1899. The spur line ran north approximately two miles
along the east bank of the South Fork of the Y adkin River from the Cooleemee Freight Depot to the Cooleemee
Junction landing. The spur line was removed in the 1980s. Secondary tracks ran from the Freight Depot south to the
west side of the mill between the mill and the former cotton shed warehouse where raw cotton and coal for the boilers
were unloaded and stored. The cotton shed warehouse and track were demolished in the 1980s

DUKE STREET

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
105 Duke Street
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Type C; Porch has new wood floor, posts and railing. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, and brick foundation added. Rear
gable roof addition

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure

One-story, prefabricated metal with gable roof
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
111 Duke Street

Type C; Porch has concrete dab floor, and cast metal posts and railing. Vinyl siding, shutters, and brick foundation added.
Rear addition with gable roof and attached shed roof over awood deck and two-bay carport.

Caretaker’sHouse ca. 1923 Noncontributing Building
114 Duke Street

Two-story, brick with hip-gable roof; Located to the rear (east) of the mill manager house, the Caretakers House features
origina six-over-one sash windows, panel doors, exterior brick chimney and hipped-roof. The original two-story side
porch and single story front porch have been replaced with one-story frame additions with vinyl siding, vinyl windows,
commercial glass entry door, and vertical painted wood siding. A gravel drive runs between the Mill Manager’ s House
and Caretaker’ s House connecting to Marginal Street and Church Street via alarge gravel parking lot. A stone retaining
wall runs along the driveway from the southwest corner toward the swimming pool. The two-story red brick Craftsman-
style house originaly built for the mill manager’s domestic staff now houses the Cooleemee Police Department offices.
Thefirst level was a carriage house and the second floor quarters for the house staff. In 1948 the building was used as the
Recreation Center Director’s home.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
117 Duke Street

Type C; Front porch enclosed. Vinyl siding, replacement doors and windows, brick foundation, exterior chimney and
shutters added. Two gable roof rear additions and rear wood deck

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
123 Duke Street

Type C; Front porch has new wood posts and railing and is extended to the corner. Vinyl siding, new front door, shutters,
brick underpinning added. Rear enclosures

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

TypeN
Bath House ca. 1949 Contributing Building
124 Duke Street

Located aong the south lot line of the Mill Manager's House lot on Duke Street, the one-story concrete block Bath House
features an asphalt hipped-roof, origina eight-pane awning windows, panel entry doors, frame louvered roof vents with
copper pyramidal roofs, recessed front gabled entry porch and poolside front-gable roof portico. Fluted pilasters frame the
front entry porch and paired square columns frame and support the poolside portico. The interior consists of male and
female shower rooms with changing areas, toilets, and sinks separated by a central office space used by staff to check-in
bathers and sell concessions. A wooden handicap ramp services the southwest corner.

Mill House ca. 1940-1953  Contributing Building
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127 Duke Street

Type I; Front stoop has cast metal posts and railing. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, and shutters added. Side gable roof
porch screened-in with cast metal posts and railing and aluminum awnings. Back stoop with concrete slab floor.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
135 Duke Street

Type C; Front porch is screen-in with new engaged shed roof. Brick veneer siding post 1969, new sash windows, modern
front door added. Rear enclosures

Shop N ca. 1990

One-gtory concrete block shop building with shed and gable roofs
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
137 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch screened-in. mill house. New sash windows and concrete block foundation added. Rear shed roof
addition and attached rear shed roof open shed. Moved from Main Street between 1963 and 1967

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
TypeM

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Noncontributing Building
145 Duke Street

Type A; Altered; Front porch enclosed with frame walls, vinyl siding and vinyl windows. New sash windows, concrete
block foundation added. Several large gable and shed roof rear additions. Moved from Main Street between 1963 and
1967

Vacant lot —east side (157 Duke Str eet)

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
158 Duke Street

Type A; front porch has concrete slab floor, cast metal posts and railing. Aluminum siding, new sash windows and
concrete block underpinning added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
162 Duke Street

Type A; Concrete front porch slab floor and new wood posts. Vinyl siding, concrete block underpinning and replacement
sash windows added. Rear wood deck

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
163 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has dab floor, cast metal posts and railing. Replacement front door and windows, aluminum siding,
brick underpinning, and metal awing added. Rear addition with shed roof; Asphalt driveway.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Door replaced with plywood doors. Attached wood frame storage shed with plywood siding on side.
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
168 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has concrete slab floor and new wood posts. Aluminum siding, replacement sash windows and
modern front door added. Rear shed roof addition and rear wood deck. Concrete walk to street

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

TypeN
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
169 Duke Street

Type A; Enclosed front porch made with new engaged shed roof and attached new wood steps. Vinyl windows, concrete
block foundation added. Rear shed roof addition.

Shop N ca. 1990

One-story prefabricated metal shop building with front gable roof
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
174 Duke Street

Type A; Concrete slab front porch floor and new wood posts. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, concrete block foundation and
exterior flue added. Rear enclosures and rear wood deck.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
175 Duke Street

Type A; Concrete porch floor and new wood columns. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation added.
Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
179 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has new wood floor, posts and railings. Vinyl siding, replacement windows, concrete block
foundation added. Rear shed roof addition and attached rear shed roof.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
180 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch concrete dab floor and cast metal posts and railing. Aluminum siding, replacement sash windows,
modern front door, concrete block underpinning added. Rear enclosures

Mill House ca. 1940-1953  Contributing Building
185 Duke Street

Type I; One-story, three-bay, two-pile front gable roof mill house with three-quarter front gable roof off-set porch; Porch
has concrete floor, cast metal posts and railing and metal awning. 1950s brick veneer siding, foundation and front steps.
Two-panel front door with six-pane window above, six-over-six sash windows, and interior brick chimney.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
186 Duke Street

Type A; Concrete slab front porch floor, new wood turned posts and railing. Vinyl siding, modern front door, vinyl
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windows, and concrete block foundation added. Rear enclosures

Nissen Hut C ca. 1940-1960
One-story semi-cylindrical horizontal structure with wood purlin and rib frame, sheet metal siding, concrete slab
floor, and frame end walls. The end walls have Masonite siding, a modern entry door and overhead metal garage door.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
192 Duke Street

Type A; Porch has concrete dab floor, new wood posts and railing. Aluminum siding, replacement sash windows and
concrete block underpinning added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
193 Duke Street
Type A; Front porch replaced with front gable stoop with concrete floor and wood posts. Vinyl siding, modern front door,

vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation added. Chimney removed from above roofline. Rear addition with shed
roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
198 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has replacement concrete dab floor, new wood posts and railing. Vinyl siding, concrete block
foundation, modern front door, vinyl windows, shutters added. Rear addition has brick veneer siding and a shed roof.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
199 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has replacement concrete dab floor and cast metal posts and railing. Aluminum siding, brick
foundation, and replacement doors and windows added. Small gable roof rear addition and rear wood deck

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
204 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch enclosed. Aluminum siding, concrete block underpinning and exterior flue added. Rear shed roof
addition.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
205 Duke Street

Type B; Front porch has concrete slab floor and new wood posts. Aluminum siding, shutters, metal awnings and brick
foundation added. Rear enclosure and rear shed porch roof; Concrete driveway

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; has attached side shed roof and replacement overhead door.
Carport N ca. 1980 Structure

One-story, one-bay prefabricated metal carport with shed roof

Workshop N ca. 1990
One-story, frame building with side gable roof and enclosed front porch with shed roof, vertical wood siding and
|attice underpinning
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
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210 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has concrete slab floor and cast metal posts. Vinyl siding, replacement sash windows, and concrete
block underpinning added. Rear enclosures

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

Door replaced and weatherboard covered with sheet metal.
Mill House ca. 1940-1953  Noncontributing Building
211 Duke Street

Type I; One-story, three-bay, double-pile, front gable roof house; Front porch enclosed with brick foundation and off-set
front gable roof. 1950s era brick veneer; Metal awnings and metal roof added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

Type N; Aluminum siding and overhead garage door added
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
215 Duke Street

Type B; Front porch has concrete slab floor with new wood posts and railing. Vinyl siding, replacement doors and
windows, shutters, concrete block foundation added. Rear enclosures and rear wood deck.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
216 Duke Street
Type A; One-story, three-bay, side-gable-roof house with gable-roofed rear el and side wing with off-set gable roof;

Remodeled during the period of significance; Front porch has been removed and replaced with small front gable roof
stoop. Asbestos siding, brick foundation, replacement doors and windows added. Rear wood back deck

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
221 Duke Street

Type A; Porch has cast metal posts and railing. Vinyl siding, concrete block underpinning, replacement sash windows
added. Rear enclosures

Storage Shed N ca. 1990

One-story frame building with side gable roof, vinyl and plywood siding

Carport N ca. 1980 Structure

One-story, two-bay prefabricated metal carport with gable roof
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
222 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch concrete dab floor with cast metal posts and wood handicap ramp off front. Aluminum siding,
awnings, shutters, modern front door, new sash windows, concrete block underpinning added. Rear enclosures

Carport N ca. 1980 Structure

One-story, two-bay prefabricated metal carport with gable roof
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
226 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch concrete slab floor with new wood posts. Vinyl siding, replacement doors and windows, shutters,
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awnings, and brick foundation added. Rear enclosure with rear wood deck and shed roof.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Attached frame shed roof on side

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
227 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has concrete slab floor and cast metal posts. Concrete block underpinning, new sash windows, front
picture window with side lights and new weatherboard added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building

232 Duke Street

Type A; Altered; Metal roofing and frame underpinning added. Gable roof wing on brick foundation with plywood siding
and enclosed shed roof porch added to front side gable. Rear shed roof stoop.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
233 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has new wood floor with cast metal posts. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, and concrete block
underpinning added. Rear enclosures

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; New plank wood doors, storage room with shed roof added to one side. Vinyl siding

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911

Type M; Connected to adjacent car shed with frame vinyl sided wall; Front replaced with double plywood doors
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
239 Duke Street

Type A; Plywood handicap ramp attached to side of front porch. Plywood covering the front porch board floor. Concrete
underpinning added. Rear hipped roof addition; Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
240 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has new wood decking and posts. Vinyl siding, new front door with side lights, vinyl windows, and
concrete block underpinning added. Rear enclosures and new wood stepsin rear

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
245 Duke Street

Type A; Vinyl windows and concrete block underpinning added. Small addition with off-set gable roof added to front
gable end. Rear enclosures

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
TypeM
Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

Type N; doors missing
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
246 Duke Street

Type A; Altered; Porch has replacement concrete floor, is partially enclosed and roof extended to front corners. Vinyl
siding, modern front door, vinyl windows and concrete block underpinning added; Shed roof rear addition and rear wood
deck.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
249 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch concrete dab floor with cast metal posts and railings; Vinyl siding, shutters, concrete block
foundation, modern front door, front picture window with side lights, and new sash windows added. Shed roof rear
addition and small, one-room hipped-roof rear addition.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
250 Duke Street

Type B; dtered; second story has been removed.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
255 Duke Street

Type A; Porch has new wood railing. Vinyl siding, replacement doors, vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation
added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
256 Duke Street

Type B; Front porch replaced with front gable stoop with concrete dab floor and fluted posts. Vinyl siding, modern front
door with side lights, vinyl windows, concrete block underpinning added. Rear enclosure and wood deck

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
261 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has concrete slab floor, cast metal posts and railing. Vinyl siding, replacement doors and windows,
brick foundation added. Rear enclosures

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
Type M; plywood siding added

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
262 Duke Street

Type B; Front porch concrete slab floor, cast metal posts and railing. Vinyl siding, replacement windows, shutters,
concrete block underpinning added. Rear enclosures and rear wood deck.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
267 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has cast metal posts and new wood railing. Aluminum siding, modern front door, new sash windows,
brick foundation added. Rear enclosures; Concrete walk and concrete retaining wall at street

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
268 Duke Street
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Type B; Front porch has new wood posts and railings. Replacement windows, brick foundation, and metal roof added.
Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
273 Duke Street

Type A; Replacement sash windows, front brick steps and concrete block foundation added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
274 Duke Street

Type A; Front porch has new wood floor, posts, and railing. Vinyl siding, replacement windows, treated added; Rear
enclosures and rear wood deck.

House ca. 2012 Noncontributing Building
279 Duke Street

One-story, side-gable roof modern house with large front gable-wing with inset front porch; Brick foundation and vinyl
windows

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
283 Duke Street

Type A; atered with partially enclosed porch and large addition with low pitch front gable roof on front elevation.
Concrete slab porch floor, new sash windows, and concrete block foundation added

Stor age building C 1898-ca.1911
One-story, one-room storage building with front gable roof; plywood and vertical wood siding added

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
287 Duke Street

Type A; Asbestos siding, concrete block underpinning, and replacement sash windows added. Off-set gable roof wing
added to the front gable end in the 1950s. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
289 Duke Street

Type B; Front porch concrete slab floor, cast metal posts and railing. Aluminum siding, replacement windows, metal
awnings, and concrete block underpinning added. Open shed-roof porch addition in rear; Concrete walk, steps, and stone
retaining wall along street

Mill House -ca.1911 Contributing Building
291 Duke Street

Type B; Front porch has hew wood deck, cast metal posts and railings and side mounted front steps. Concrete block
underpinning, vinyl siding, replacement windows, shutters, and metal roof added. Rear enclosures and rear wood
handicap ramp

Storage Shed N ca. 1980
One-story, prefabricated metal storage building with front gable roof
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ERWIN STREET

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building

107 Erwin Street

Type C; Front porch has new wood tapered piers on brick bases, frame half-wall railing with vinyl siding. Vinyl siding,
vinyl windows, brick foundation added. Small one-room rear addition with off-set gable roof, and rear open shed roof

with screened-in porch; A concrete and date walkway |eads to stone and slate steps between stone retaining walls which
run along the front of the lot. A concrete driveway runs along the south side of the house.

Garage N ca. 2000
One-story, one-bay front gable garage with vinyl siding and doors, and asphalt shingles

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
Type M; three door chicken coop with shed roof attached to eastern side of shed. Shed roof and chicken coop roof

Mill House
108 Erwin Street 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building

Type C; Front porch has replacement concrete slab floor, cast metal posts and the roof extended to the corner. Vinyl
windows, brick foundation, and vinyl siding added; Rear gable roof addition and rear wood deck with lattice underpinning

Carport N ca. 2000 Structure
One-story, one-bay prefabricated metal carport with gable roof

Mrs. James Zachary House ca. 1935 Contributing Building

112 Erwin Street

Two-story, three-bay, double-pile frame house with side gable roof and three-quarter width front porch with shed roof.
Front porch enclosed with storm windows. Origind interior chimney, six-over-six sash windows, and panel front door

intact. Brick foundation, aluminum siding, and shutters added. Rear porch with shed roof enclosed. Built for mill
manager, James Zachary’ s widow after his death in 1934.

113 Erwin Street — property noted asvacant (V) on historic district map.

Shed N ca. 2014 Building
One-story, modern frame shed with gable roof. House on property recently burned down.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
118 Erwin Street

Type C; Front porch has new wood floor, posts and railing. Replacement windows, concrete block foundation added. Rear
enclosures and rear wood deck.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
121 Erwin Street

Type C; Front porch extended to corner. Vinyl siding, modern front door, and brick front steps with metal railing and
brick foundation added. Rear shed roof addition and rear gable roof stoop.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
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124 Erwin Street

Type C; Front porch removed. Double vinyl windows added in front. Vinyl windows, concrete block underpinning added.
Rear enclosures and rear wood deck.

Mill House 1898-ca. 1911  Contributing Building
127 Erwin Street

Type C; Porch has new wood posts, railing, and flooring. Vinyl siding, modern front door, brick foundation added. Rear
enclosures

Mill House ca. 1940-1953  Noncontributing Building
130 Erwin Street

Type I; Altered; Front stoop has cast metal posts. Side gable-roof porch enclosed and atered by connecting to a one-story,
one-bay, front gable roof garage with overhead garage door. Rear gable roof stoop and rear wood deck

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
133 Erwin Street

Type C; Front porch is enclosed under original roof. Doors and windows are replacements. The house is supported by
origina brick foundation piers with added concrete block underpinning. Rear enclosures

Garage N ca. 1980
One-story, one-bay front gable roof garage with vinyl siding and overhead garage door

Mill house 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
135 Erwin Street

Type C; Porch floor is new wood. Porch roof is supported by four cast metal replacement posts and wraps around side to
rear shed roof addition. Replacement windows and doors; Vinyl siding, metal roof, and brick foundation added. Rear
enclosures

Mill house 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
136 Erwin Street

Type C; Porch has new wood floor and posts. Vinyl siding, shutters, and brick foundation added. Small one-room off-set
gable roof wing added to the gable end of house. Rear enclosures and rear wood deck.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
141 Erwin Street

Type C; Porch has new wood floor decking, cast metal posts and railing and brick steps. Vinyl siding, shutters, awvnings,
front picture window with side-lights, and brick foundation added. Rear gable roof addition

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, two-bay prefabricated metal carport with front gable roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
142 Erwin Street

Type C; Porch has a concrete slab, new wood posts and railing. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, modern front door, and
concrete block foundation added. Rear gable roof porch and side carport additions; concrete driveway
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Garage N ca. 2000

One-story, two-bay detached modern garage with front gable roof, vinyl siding, and overhead garage door

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
146 Erwin Street

Type C; Porch has new wood floor and cast meta posts. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, and concrete block underpinning
added. Rear enclosures.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
147 Erwin Street

Type C; Porch has new wood floor, vinyl posts and railing and front brick steps. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, concrete
block underpinning added. Rear enclosures.

House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building

150 Erwin Street

Type A; substantially altered with front porch removed to add a front gable room addition. Side gable end wing added.
Vertical wood siding, new sash windows, modern doors, brick foundation added. Attached two-bay, gable roof carport in
rear.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
153 Erwin Street

Type A; Porch has new wood floor decking and posts. Porch roof extended to corners. The windows and doors are
replacements. Vinyl siding and brick underpinning added. Rear wing extended and side shed roof addition.

Wor kshop N ca. 1980
One-story, side gable roof building with concrete slab floor, vinyl siding, and attached shed roof carport on front

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
162 Erwin Street
Type C; Porch has replacement wood floor, posts and railing. Porch extended to corner; vinyl siding, new sash windows,

shutters, awnings, brick and concrete exterior flues and concrete block underpinning added. Rear gable roof addition and
shed roof enclosed rear porch addition.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Doors missing and roof covered with roll asphalt

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
163 Erwin Street

Type C; Front porch has vinyl replacement posts and railing. A metal awning is attached to the front porch roof. Modern
front door, vinyl siding, new sash windows, shutters, metal awning, and brick foundation added. Rear shed roof wood
porch addition; rear enclosures.

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, two-car prefabricated metal carport with front gable roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
168 Erwin Street
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Type A; Front porch has new wood floor, posts and railing. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, and concrete block foundation
added. Rear shed roof addition with attached shed roof porch.

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, two-car prefabricated meta carport with front gable roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
169 Erwin Street

Type A; Porch has concrete dab floor with cast metal posts. The windows and doors are replacements. Vinyl siding,
shutters, brick foundation added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
173 Erwin Street

Type C; Altered; Front faces away from the street and the house is accessed by a separate through street. Front porch is
enclosed. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, concrete block foundation added. Rear enclosures

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, two-car prefabricated metal carport with front gable roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
176 Erwin Street

Type A; Front porch has new wood floor, posts and railing. Vinyl siding, new sash windows, modern front door, and brick
underpinning added. Rear gable roof and shed roof additions.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
179 Erwin Street

Type A; Concrete porch floor with cast meta posts and railing. 1950s brick veneer siding added during the period of
significance. Replacement doors and windows, shed roof rear addition added

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
182 Erwin Street

Type C; Front porch has concrete slab floor, new wood posts and railing. Vinyl and asphalt siding, front picture window
and concrete block foundation added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
187 Erwin Street

Type C; front porch has concrete slab floor, cast meta posts and railings and metal awning attached to porch roof.
Aluminum siding, new sash windows, shutters, and concrete block foundation added. Rear additions

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
188 Erwin Street

Type A; Front porch has concrete slab floor and new wood posts. Vinyl siding, modern front door, new sash windows,
shutters and concrete block foundation added. Rear shed roof addition

GROVE STREEET
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House ca. 1980-1985  Noncontributing Building
129 Grove Street

One-and-a-half-story, side-gable-roofed modern home with brick exterior, double front porch with engaged roof, wood
posts and railing.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
133 Grove Street

Type A; Porch has new wood floor, posts and railing. Frame underpinning, rear enclosures, and rear shed roof porch
added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
139 Grove Street

Type A; Front porch partialy enclosed. Modern front door, new sash windows, brick underpinning added. Small, one-
room rear addition with shed roof; rear enclosures

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

Type N; doors missing and front boarded up with plywood
House ca. 2000 Noncontributing Building
145 Grove Streset

One-story, side-gable-roof modern house with ataller roofline over front porch; Porch has concrete floor, vinyl posts and
railing. Concrete block foundation and vinyl windows.

Storage Building C ca. 1953-1969
One-story, frame, front gable roofed structure with metal siding and roof; brick pier foundation

Mill House 1898-ca. 1911  Contributing Building
151 Grove Street

Type A; Front porch has concrete slab floor, cast metal posts and railing. Aluminum siding, modern front door, vinyl
windows, shutters and concrete block foundation added. Rear gable and shed roof additions.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
152 Grove Street

Type A; Front porch has new wood posts and railing. Modern front door, new sash windows, aluminum siding and brick
underpinning added. Rear enclosures and rear wood deck.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building

157 Grove Street
Type A; atered with front porch removed and side gable roof room and carport addition added to side gable end.
Windows and doors are replacement. Concrete block foundation, vinyl siding, and shutters added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
158 Grove Street

Type A; New sash windows, vinyl siding, concrete block underpinning added. Attached al uminum shed roof back porch
with concrete dab floor; rear enclosures.
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Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
TypeN

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
163 Grove Street
Type A; Porch and entrance have been altered. Part of the porch has been enclosed to create a small room and entrance

way and a new engaged shed roof extends to the main roof. Porch has new wood floor, posts, and railing. Windows and
doors are replacement. Vinyl siding and concrete block foundation added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
164 Grove Street
Type A; Porch roof is screened in but retains original four wood posts and tongue and groove wood board floor. Metal

railing borders the concrete steps to the porch. The house and porch are supported by a concrete block foundation. New
sash windows and shutters added. Rear wood handicap ramp and deck and rear enclosures

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

Type N; replacement plywood double doors
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
167 Grove Street

Type A; Porch roof is supported by six metal posts and railing. The porch has a concrete floor. Brick stepslead to the
porch. Vinyl windows, modern front door, shutters, and brick foundation added. Gable roof rear addition

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure

One-story, two-car prefabricated metal carport with front gable roof
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
168 Grove Street

Type A; Altered; the original porch has been removed and replaced with a small deck with wood floor and railing;
Windows and doors are replacement and front window enclosed. The house is supported by stucco concrete block
masonry foundation.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
174 Grove Street
Type A; Porch roof is supported by six cast metal posts and railing. The porch has a concrete floor. Block steps lead to the

porch. The house and porch are supported by the original brick piers with concrete block underpinning added. Windows
and doors are replacement. Vinyl siding and rear shed roof addition added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
TypeN

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
175 Grove Street

Type A; The porch roof is supported by six cast metal posts and railing. The porch has a concrete floor. The house and
porch are supported by the original brick piers with concrete block underpinning added. Windows are replacement. Rear
gable roof and shed rood additions, vinyl siding, and metal roof added.
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
180 Grove Street

Type A; Porch roof is supported by four cast metal posts. The porch has new wood floor. Windows and doors are
replacement. Vinyl siding and concrete block underpinning added. Rear gable roof addition, and a one-room wing with
off-set gable roof has been added to the side-gable end before 1969.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building

186 Grove Street

Type A; The porch roof is supported by four cast metal posts and railing. The porch has a concrete floor. Block steps |lead
to the porch from the side. The house and porch are supported by the original brick piers with concrete block

underpinning added. Windows and doors are replacement. Aluminum siding, rear gable and shed roof additions and rear
shed roof porch added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
204 Grove Street

One-story, three-bay wide, single-pile house with low-pitch side-gable roof; Altered with front porch enclosed to add
rooms; Aluminum siding, new sash windows, and brick foundation added.

HICKORY STREEET

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Contributing Building

145 Hickory Street

Type F; Front gable porch roof is supported by four new wood posts. The porch floor is new wood board. The windows
and doors are replacements. A side gable addition was added to the left side of the house. Rear enclosure and rear wood
deck.

Moaobile Home ca. 1990 Noncontributing Building
148 Hickory Street

Double-wide mobile home

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Contributing Building

151 Hickory Street

Type F; Front gable porch roof is supported by four cast metal posts with screen placed behind on awood frame. The
house and porch are supported by original brick foundation piers with concrete block underpinning added. A set of brick
steps leads to the porch and is bordered by metal railing. The windows and doors are replacements. Vinyl siding, rear
enclosures and rear wood porch with shed roof added.

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Contributing Building

156 Hickory Street

Type F; Front gable porch roof is supported by six new wood posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards. The
windows and doors are replacements. The house and porch are supported by original brick piers with concrete block
underpinning added. Vinyl siding, rear shed roof addition with wood deck added.

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Contributing Building
157 Hickory Street

Type F; Front gable porch roof is supported by four cast meta posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood board. The
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house and porch are supported by a new brick foundation. Brick steps lead to the porch and bordered by metal railing.
Replacement doors and windows, vinyl siding, and rear enclosures added.

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Contributing Building

168 Hickory Street

Type F; Front gable porch roof is supported by four new wood posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards.
The house and porch are supported by original brick piers with concrete block underpinning and stucco added. New wood

steps lead to the porch and bordered by new wood railing. The windows are replaced. Gable and shed roof rear additions
and vinyl siding added.

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Contributing Building

169 Hickory Street

Type F; Front gable porch roof is supported by four new wood posts. The new wood railing around the porch has been
connected with wood lattice. The porch floor is new wood board. The house and porch are supported by original brick

foundation piers with concrete block underpinning and stucco added. The windows and doors are replacements. Large
rear shed roof frame porch addition.

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Noncontributing Building
174 Hickory Street
Type F; Altered with brick veneer siding in the 1970s. Front gable porch roof is supported by four cast metal posts and

railing. The porch floor is concrete slab. The windows and doors are replacements. New brick foundation; an attached
two-bay frame gable-roof carport added to one side.

Mill House ca. 1928-1934  Noncontributing Building
175 Hickory Street

Type F; Front gable porch has been enclosed. The house and porch are supported by original brick piers with concrete
block underpinning added. The windows and doors are replacements. New wood stairs and back stoop on lower side
elevation. Vinyl siding and rear enclosures added.

HOLT STREEET

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
140 Holt Street

Type B; Porch roof supported by four new wood replacement posts and railing; new wood front porch flooring. The house
and porch are supported by new brick foundation. Replacement doors and windows, aluminum siding, shutters, and rear
enclosures added

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
Type M; large door cut in side.

Workshop and Hay Barn ca. 1940 Contributing Building
172 Holt Street

Large one-story, front gable roofed frame building with corrugated metal siding, metal roof, plywood shutters, original
two-over-two sash windows and large sliding door with exposed track. Used as aworkshop and carpentry shop.
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Hay Barn C ca. 1940

One-story, open, front-gable-roof, timber-frame, six-bay wide hay barn used to dry and store hay. Structure has a
metal roof, exposed rafter ends, and a frame half-wall with open, timber-frame, shed roof extensions on front and
side. The building has a gravel/dirt floor with combination brick or concrete block foundation piers or low wall. Rear
gable end enclosed with vertical plank wood frame wall.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
192 Holt Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by four new wood replacement posts. A large side-gable wing added to the side of the
front gable end after 1969. Brick foundation, replacement doors and windows and rear enclosures added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Two Type N; Doors missing

JOYNER STREEET

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
104 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by four new wood posts and railing. The porch floor is plywood over original wood floor
boards. Brick steps lead to the porch and have a new wood rail up one side. The windows are replacements. The house is
set back alittle from the street on its lot. The house and porch are supported by a painted new brick foundation. Vinyl
siding, rear enclosures and rear wood handicap ramp added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
105 Joyner Street

Type C; dtered with porch enclosed with vinyl windows and origina panel door. The windows are replacements. Vinyl
siding, brick foundation, rear enclosures, rear gable roof addition, and attached frame one-bay shed roof carport added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
110 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three new wood posts and railing is filled in with lattice. The porch floor is new wood
boards. The windows are replacements. Concrete block foundation and front steps, rear enclosures and vinyl siding added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
TypeN
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building

111 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by two cast metd posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards covered with
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plywood. Brick steps lead from the porch to a concrete walkway that terminates near the street. The windows and front
door are replacements. Vinyl siding, brick foundation, and rear enclosures added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
114 Joyner Street
Type C; Porch roof is supported by two cast meta posts and railing. The porch roof has an attached metal awning. Brick

steps lead to the porch and are bordered by low brick knee walls. The windows and front door are replacement. Aluminum
siding, awnings, rear enclosures, and brick foundation added. Concrete driveway and wal kway

Car Shed N ca. 1920-1953
Type N; dtered with frame enclosure on concrete half wall foundation. Overhead garage door and shed roof addition
with overhead garage and aluminum siding added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
115 Joyner Street
Type C; Porch roof is supported by two cast meta posts and railing. The porch roof has an attached metal awning.

Brick steps lead to the porch and have ametal railing up one side. The windows are replacements. Vinyl siding, awnings,
brick underpinning, rear enclosures, rear shed roof enclosed entry and rear wood deck added.

Car Shed N ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Doors missing; Shed roof, one-bay, frame garage addition to one side

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
122 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by two cast metd posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards. Concrete steps
lead to the porch and bordered by meta railing. The windows are replacements. The house hasits origina brick pier
supports with concrete block underpinning. The porch is supported by a painted concrete block foundation. Vinyl siding,
rear enclosures, and rear wood deck added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
TypeN

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
123 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by four new wood posts. The porch floor is new wood boards. Concrete block
underpinning, shutters, and rear enclosures added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
126 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three new wood posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards. Concrete
block porch foundation and concrete block underpinning added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
133 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three new wood posts. The porch floor is concrete. Brick steps lead to the porch and
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have new wood railing up one side. The windows are replacements. The porch roof has an attached metal awning. The
house and porch are supported by a concrete block foundation. Aluminum siding, rear enclosures, shed roof rear addition
added. An off-set gable roof, frame, two-bay carport attached to side gable end

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
134 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch screened-in. The windows are replacements. The porch is shaded by an attached metal awning. Aluminum
siding, concrete block underpinning and rear shed roof addition added. Rear porch with concrete dab floor, concrete block
foundation, metal posts and railing and metal awning

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
137 Joyner Street
Type C; Porch roof is supported by three cast metal posts and railing. Brick stepslead to the porch and have metal railing

up one side. The porch roof has an attached metal awning. Asbestos siding, new sash windows, shutters, brick foundation,
and rear enclosures added.

Boy Scout Hut ca. 1937 Contributing Building
142 Joyner Street

One-story, one-bay wide, front-gable, frame building with interior brick chimney and asphalt shingle roof with exposed
rafter ends; Origina six-over-six sash wood windows and three-panel door with six-pane window above intact. Asbestos
siding, concrete block foundation and metal awning added. Building was built to be used by the Boy Scouts.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
145 Joyner Street

Type C; Brick foundation and rear enclosures added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Doors replaced with plywood.

Mill House ca. 1940-1953  Contributing Building
149 Joyner Street

Type |; Side gable porch enclosed; Vinyl and ashestos siding added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
157 Joyner Street
Type C; Porch roof is supported by two vinyl posts and railing. The porch floor is concrete dab. The porch has a painted

concrete block foundation. Partial vinyl siding, vinyl windows, modern doors, and stucco concrete block underpinning
added. Rear enclosures

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
158 Joyner Street

Type C porch roof is supported by two new wood posts. The porch floor is new wood boards. The windows and doors are
replacements. The house and porch are supported by a stucco concrete block foundation. Rear enclosures and rear wood
deck.
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Carport N ca. 1990 Structure

One-story, two-bay, front gable, frame carport

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
163 Joyner Street
Type C; Porch roof is supported by five new wood posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards. The windows

and doors are replacements. Vinyl siding, stucco concrete block underpinning, rear diding glass doors, and rear
enclosures added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
164 Joyner Street
Type C; Porch roof is supported by new wood posts and railing and has been screened-in. The porch floor is new wood

boards. The windows and doors are replacements. Aluminum siding, concrete block underpinning, rear enclosures, and
rear wood deck added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
168 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by two new wood posts and railing. The porch floor is concrete slab. The windows and
doors are replacements. Vinyl siding, shutter, stucco brick underpinning, rear enclosures, and rear wood deck added.

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, two-bay, front gable, prefabricated metal carport

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
169 Joyner Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three new wood posts. The porch floor is concrete dab. The windows and doors are
replacements. The house and porch are supported by a new brick foundation. Aluminum siding, awnings, rear enclosures,
and metal roof added.

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, two-bay, frame carport with shed roof

JUNCTION ROAD

Livery Stable Manager’sHouse 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
2121 Junction Road

Two-story, L-plan, frame house with front wing, cross-gable roof and front porch with hipped-roof nearly spanning the
entire front; Original interior brick chimney islocated at the roof crossing. The porch has tongue-and-groove wood board
floor, vinyl replacement posts and railing and the section spanning the central part of the house has been screened-in. The
house is supported by original brick pierswith brick underpinning added. A Type C mill house is attached in the rear with
interior brick chimney and brick foundation piers. The porch of the rear wing has a shed roof with metal awning attached,
concrete dab floor, and cast metal posts and railing. Aluminum siding, shutters, replacement doors and windows, and
brick underpinning added. A one-story, one-room addition with bay window and end-gable roof has been added on the
lower side of the front wing. Large yard with old growth trees surround dwelling. Built by the mill company for the

Sections 7 page 55



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District Davie County, NC
Name of Property County and State

Livery Stable Manager, the house was a so used for boarding teachers and baseball players.

MAIN STREET

Trollinger House ca. 1886 Contributing Building
110 Main Street

One-story, two-bay log house with side-gable roof. The house has exterior brick chimneys on gable ends and a one-story,
frame rear ell with end-gable roof, exterior brick chimney and brick flue. The porch has atongue-and-groove wood board
floor and athree-quarter engaged shed roof supported by square wood posts and ssmple railing and has been screened-in.
The origina front panel door has been replaced with athree-panel door with three-vertical -pane window above framed by
two four-pane sash above three-panel sidelights. A triple sash window made of a six-over-six sash center window and two
four-over-four sash side windows provides light to the front living room. Vinyl siding, brick foundation, rear shed roof
additions, and rear concrete stoop with cast metal railing have been added. A one-story, one-room, frame gable roof wing
has been added to the side gable end and the front porch extended to make a continuous front elevation. Originaly built
by the grist mill operator John Trollinger, the house and two-acre | ot were purchased by the mill company and converted
to amill housein 1899. The mill company added weatherboards over the log structure to match the other company-built
mill houses. Construction of the side wing and rear ell falls within the period of significance prior to 1969. Mature
deciduous shade trees and expansive lawn surround the house. Concrete steps lead from the front porch to the sidewalk
aong Main Street.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
TypeN
Carport N ca. 1990 Structure

One-story, two-bay, frame carport with front gable roof

Outbuilding C ca. 1886

One-story, one-room, log outbuilding with front-gable roof, wood plank door with strap hinges and attached frame,
shed roof storage areawith vertical wood plank walls on two sides. The logs are joined at the corners with a half
dovetail joint. The structure has a standing seam meta roof and stone foundation piers.

Chicken house C ca. 1886
One-story, one-room, frame chicken house with metal-clad shed roof, exposed rafter ends, six panel door with strap
hinges, open wire front window, brick foundation piers, and weatherboards.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
118 Main Street

Type C; Porch has new wood floor boards, posts and railing. Front door moved to front gable wing. Replacement doors
and windows, brick underpinning, vinyl siding, shutters, and rear enclosures added.

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, two-bay, frame carport with front gable roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
125 Main Street
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Type C; Porch has new wood posts and railing, new wood floor, and attached metal awning. Brick steps lead to the porch
and have wood railing up the sides. The windows and doors are replacement. Vinyl siding, shutters, brick foundation, rear
enclosures and rear wood handicap ramps added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
130 Main Street

Type C; Porch screened-in. The windows and doors are replacement. Vinyl siding, shutters, brick foundation, rear
enclosures, and rear wood deck added. Rear one-room, off-set gable roof addition

Storage Building N ca. 1990
One-story, frame outbuilding with front gable roof and vinyl siding

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
131 Main Street

Type C; Porch has new wood floor, posts, and railing. The windows are replacement. Vinyl siding, metal roof, stone
underpinning, rear enclosures, and rear wood deck added. Concrete driveway, walkway, and steps

Storage Building N ca. 1990
One-story, frame outbuilding with side gable metal clad roof and Masonite siding

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure
One-story, two-bay, prefabricated metal carport with front gable roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
136 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three vinyl posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards. Brick stepslead to
the porch. Vinyl siding, brick foundation, and rear enclosures added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
139 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three new wood posts. The porch floor is new wood boards. The windows are
replacement. Front door replaced with amodern panel door with sidelights. Vinyl siding, concrete block underpinning and
partia foundation, rear shed roof addition, rear wood deck with handicap ramp and trellis added. Concrete driveway

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
142 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three cast metal posts with railing. The porch floor is concrete dab. Brick steps lead to
the porch and bordered by metal rails and low brick knee-walls. The windows and doors are replacements. Vinyl siding,
metal roof, brick foundation, rear shed roof porch, rear enclosures added.

Carport N ca. 1970 Structure
Modern one-story, one-bay, metal carport with shed roof and V-metal posts
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
145 Main Street

Type C; Altered; Porch roof is supported by new wood posts and porch has a new wood floor. Replacement doors and
windows; House and porch are supported by new brick foundation. Large side gable roof wing added to gable end with
rear gable roof ell. Rear enclosures, rear shed roof porch and concrete driveway.

Carport N ca. 2000 Structure
One-story, two-bay, frame carport with gable roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
153 Main Street

Type C; New engaged shed porch roof is supported by three new wood posts. The porch floor is concrete slab. The
windows and doors are replacements. Aluminum siding, brick foundation and rear enclosures added.

Garage N ca. 2000

One-story, one-bay, frame carport with front gable roof, concrete block foundation walls, and attached front gable
roof carport

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Noncontributing Building
159 Main Street

Type C; dtered with second story added on front gable wing. Porch roof supported by metal posts and railing; Porch has
concrete floor. Replacement doors and windows Vinyl siding, shutters, brick foundation, and rear enclosures added.

Mill house 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
165 Main Street

Type C; Porch has concrete floor and cast metal posts. Replacement doors and windows, brick foundation, rear enclosures
added. Brick veneer siding dates prior to 19609.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
166 Main Street

Type C; Porch has been screened-in. Brick steps lead to the porch. Asphalt shingle siding, awnings, and brick foundation
added. Rear gable roof wing; rear shed roof enclosed porch.

Barn C 1898-ca.1911

Small one-story, frame, front-gable roof barn with a storage | oft; Building has panel doors, butt hinges, weatherboard,
asphalt shingle roof, small shed roof on side, and brick foundation piers. The loft is accessed by a pair of framed
plywood doors located in the front gable.

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
Type M

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
172 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three new wood posts. The porch floor is plywood. New wood side mounted porch

steps and concrete steps front steps with single metal pipe railing. The windows and doors are replacement. Aluminum

siding, shutters, brick foundation added. Twin rear gable-roof ells; rear shed roof addition and rear wood deck added
Sections 7 page 58



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018

Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District Davie County, NC
Name of Property County and State

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
173 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof supported by three cast metal posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards. The windows are
replacements. Aluminum siding, shutters, concrete block underpinning, concrete block front steps, side mounted front
porch wood handicap ramp, rear gable roof addition, rear wood deck, and rear wood handicap ramp added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
178 Main Street

Type C; Porch has concrete dab floor, brick steps and has been enclosed with windows and apron wall. Vinyl siding,
brick foundation, and rear enclosures added.

Storage Building N ca. 2000
One-story, one-bay, frame storage building with side gable roof, concrete block foundation piers

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
179 Main Street

Type C; Porchis screened-in with wood lattice railing. Brick steps|ead to the porch. The windows and doors are
replacements. Brick foundation and rear enclosures added.

Carport N ca. 2000 Structure
One-story, two-bay, frame carport with gable roof

Carport N ca. 2000 Structure
One-story, two-bay, frame carport with gable roof

Storage Building N ca. 1970
One-story, frame with shed roof

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
184 Main Street
This H-plan house appears to be an L-plan house attached to a single front-gable wing. The central porch links the two

front-facing gables. The porch roof is supported by new wood posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards.
Vinyl siding, shutters, brick foundation, rear shed roof addition, rear enclosures, and rear wood deck added.

Storage Building N ca. 1970

One-story, frame metal storage building with gable roof

Carport N ca. 1990 Structure

One-story, one-bay, frame carport with gable roof
Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
185 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three new wood posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards. Concrete steps
lead to the porch. Concrete block underpinning and rear enclosures added.
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
190 Main Street

Type A; Porch roof is supported by four cast metal posts and railing. Asbestos siding, awnings, brick foundation, and rear
porch with concrete slab floor, cast metal posts and railing, and shed awning added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Weatherboards covered with vertical board-and-batten siding

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
Type M

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
191 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof supported by cast metal posts and railing. Replacement doors and windows; Aluminum siding, brick
foundation, brick steps, rear enclosures, and rear porch with concrete dab floor, cast metal posts and railing and shed roof
awning added. One-story, side gable wing with rear gable roofed ell added to gable end prior to 1969.

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
Type M; Masonite siding

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
196 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof supported by new wood posts and screened in. Porch has a new wood floor boards. Replacement
doors and windows; Vinyl siding, shutters, rear enclosures, rear wood deck and brick and foundation added. Rear off-set
gable roof, one-room frame addition with concrete block foundation; One-story, frame side wing with off-set gable roof
and rear shed roof addition on gable end added prior to 1969.

Cooleemee United Methodist Church ca. 1932 Contributing Building
197 Main Street

Colonia Revival-style brick church; The church has a front-gable roof, one-story sanctuary approximately twenty feet in
height, rear two-story, hipped-roof wing and T-plan. The entrance features a pedimented portico supported by tall, paired,
fluted columns, square pilasters, and concrete steps with concrete capped knee walls and cast meta railing. The origina
double panel entry doors have been replaced with a pair of commercia plate glass doors under the original stained-glass
fanlight. The frame steeple located over the entry vestibule has a stepped square base, octagonal bell tower with arched
louvered vents crowned by an octagonal, copper-clad conical roof and cross. Tall, stained-glass windows over stained-
glass bottom sash have rounded brick arches with concrete keystones, concrete sills and diamond motif lead joints. The
rear wing has an exterior entry with paired panel doors, six-pane transom above, and a front gable pediment supported by
simple square pilasters accessed by a concrete handicap ramp with cast metal railing. Vinyl siding, vinyl windows, and a
wide molded cornice board have been added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
213 Main Street

Type C; Brick steps lead to the porch and are bordered by brick knee-walls. Asbestos siding, shutters, modern front door,
vinyl windows, concrete block underpinning, rear shed roof addition, and rear wood deck have been added.
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
219 Main Street

Type B; Vinyl siding, replacement doors and windows and concrete block underpinning added; Two-story shed roof rear
addition, rear enclosures, and rear wood deck; Concrete driveway, steps, and walkway

Water Tank ca. 1930 Contributing Structure

222 Main Street

Cylindrical tower approximately forty-eight feet tall with flat metal top and riveted sheet metal siding on a concrete base
Water Tank N ca. 1990 Structure

Cylindrical tower approximately forty-eight feet tall with flat metal top and sheet metal siding on a concrete base

Water Tank N ca. 1980 Structure
Cylindrical concrete tower approximately forty-eight feet tall with cone top

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
225 Main Street
Type C; Porch roof is supported by three cast metal posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards. Brick steps

lead to the porch and have metal railing on one side. The windows are replacements. Vinyl siding, frame underpinning
with pressed metal sheeting, rear shed roof addition, and rear wood deck added.

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953

Type N; Doors have been replaced with paired vertical wood plank gates
Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
229 Main Street

Type A; Porch roof has metal awning attached. Replacement windows; Vinyl siding, awnings, concrete block
underpinning added. Twin rear gable-roof ells; Rear gable-roof addition on rear ell gable end; Rear shed roof porch
enclosure

Smokehouse C 1898-ca.1911
Type M

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
233 Main Street
Type C; Porch roof has attached metal awning and is supported by cast metal posts and railing. The porch floor is new

wood boards. Vinyl siding, awnings, concrete block underpinning and rear shed roof porch enclosure added. Twin gable-
roof rear ells; Concrete steps, walkway, and concrete block retaining wall along street

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
239 Main Street

Type A; Porch roof supported by cast metal posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood boards. The windows are
replacement. Vinyl siding, awnings, concrete block underpinning, metal roof, and rear enclosures added. Concrete steps,
walkway, and concrete block retaining wall aong street

Car Shed C ca. 1920-1953
Type N; Missing doors
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Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
243 Main Street

Type C; Brick steps lead to the porch and have a cast metal rail on one side. The windows are replacements. The house
and porch are supported by a brick foundation. Vinyl siding and rear enclosures added.

Water Treatment Plant ca. 1939-1956  Contributing Building

246 Main Street

One-story, L-plan brick building with concrete slab floors, finished basement, front-gable roof and hipped-roof side wing.
Metal exterior doors and small sash windows with concrete lintels and sills; Most of the window openings have been in-
filled with brick. Vinyl siding added to gable ends. Rear one-story brick addition with flat membrane roof

Filter Plant/Reservoir C ca. 1926 Structure

Cast-in-place concrete, in-ground structure used to store and treat water; the facility has alarge rectangular basin
divided into one large rectangular chamber and twelve smaller square chambers, alarge circular concrete reservoir
and alarge rectangular reservoir with rounded corners

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
249 Main Street

Type A. Porch roof is supported by new wood posts. The porch floor is hew wood boards. The windows and doors are
replacement. Concrete block foundation and rear shed roof addition with plywood board siding added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911  Contributing Building
253 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by three new wood posts and railing. The porch floor is new wood. Brick stepslead to the
porch. The windows and doors are replacements. Vinyl siding, shutters, brick underpinning, and rear enclosures added.

Mill House 1898-ca.1911 Contributing Building
259 Main Street

Type C; Porch roof is supported by new wood posts and railing. Vinyl siding, shutters, metal roof, brick foundation and
rear enclosures added. A room in the house was used by the Cooleemee Tel ephone Company exchange office beginning
in 1910

Cooleemee Mill Dam ca. 1898-1900  Contributing Structure
272 Main Street

Built between 1898 and 1900, the Cooleemee Dam and Mill Race provided the Cooleemee Cotton Mill water power,
which along with power generated by steam turbines located in the boiler room, drove the spinning frames, looms and
other machinery of the factory. Utilizing a granite escarpment asits base, the 477-foot long and 12-foot tall granite stone
dam spans the South Fork of the Y adkin River at the location of a natural twenty-two foot fal line. Constructed of large,
square granite blocks quarried onsite, the dam tapers up on its downstream face from a wide base giving the structure
increased stability. The river which generally runsin a northwest to southeast direction bends to the west at the dam’'s
location which gives the dam a more north-south orientation. The dam consists of five sections—the north end head gate
section, the race wall section, the north end flood gate section, the center spillway section, and the south end flood gate
section. On the northern end of the dam, the six-to-eight foot thick head gate dam angles north-south from the main dam.
Eight stone walls, upstream and perpendicular to the face of the head gate dam, house seven thick, metd, plates. A system
of vertical metal levers protruding above dam’ s the north face raises and lowers the metal gates diverting water from the
main river channel into the mill race. A large metal water line runs the length of the head gate dam along the top. At the
south end of the head gate section, the dam makes a short ninety degree bend. From this point, the western oriented north
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end flood gate section of the main dam connects with the mill race wall which angles back toward the east. Lying
downstream of the head gate dam, the mill race wall is made of stepped courses of granite blocks and runs for some two
hundred feet. The top of the six-to-eight foot thick north end flood gate section and the mill race wall is roughly three feet
below the head gate dam elevation. The north flood gate section contains six flood gates located at the base of the dam.
From the north flood gate section the main dam narrows to a thickness of about two-to-three feet at itstop. This middle
and longest section of the dam is called the spillway. Sightly lower in height than the north and south flood gate sections,
the spillway allows for alarge volume of water to spill over. At the south flood gate section which contains two gates, the
dam thickens back to six-to-eight feet. The flood gates, which use the same type of plate and lever system as the head
gates, and the spillway are designed to regul ate the reservoir capacity above the dam and alleviate pressure during high
water conditions. The dam continues south shortening in height as it bridges over the rising granite rock formation at the
dams south end. The southernmost section of the dam past the south end flood gates, angles back to the east for
approximately fifty feet before reaching the west bank of the river.

The area on the granite escarpment below the south end of the dam was the site of the quarrying operation and the Stone
Pool. Built shortly after the dam was completed in 1901, the Stone Pool served as arecreationa amenity until the new
Olympic-size pool was built at 131 Church Street in 1949. South and east from the dam and Stone Pool, theriver forms a
natural eddy called “The Bullhole.” The Bullhole and the surrounding parkland are part of the eighty-acre “ RiverPark”
owned and operated by the Town of Cooleemee since 2003.

Equipment Building/Pump House N ca. 1990
One-story, one-room, brick with flat concrete sab roof; Houses equipment, electrical panels, and materias for the
dam; Owned by Davie County

Minimum Release Turbine building N ca. 2005
One-story concrete block building with asphalt shingle gable roof. Standsimmediately next to the western concrete
wall of the mill race.

Old NC Highway 801 Bridge Abutments C ca. 1902 two structures

Downstream from the dam and west of the north end of the Cooleemee Mill are the remains of two stone bridge
abutments which supported the NC Highway 801 metal truss bridge from 1902 to 1942 when the street was rerouted
and the present-day bridge south of the mill built. The stone abutment located just west of the east bank of theriver is
free-standing and has a rectangular form. The structure features north and south angled ends which taper slightly
from base to top elevation helping divert the water around the mass. The stones are square and grouted with concrete
mortar joints. The west bank abutment is of similar construction but is built into the steep, side-slope of the west
bank.

Cooleemee Cotton Mill Office Building C ca. 1898 -1911 Contributing building

314 Main Street
One-story, frame, L-plan with cross-gable roof and high brick foundation with partial basement; the front-gabl e roof
wing which faces east toward Main Street has a hipped-roof extension with six-over-six sash windows and a brick
stoop with concrete slab floor, brick steps, metal awning, and two-panel door with six-pane window above on the
south side. The side gable wing has four-over-four sash windows above a partial basement with two-over-two sash
windows set in the brick foundation wall. The rear hipped-roof, wrap-around porch has been enclosed and a rear
gable-roof extension added to the front-gable west end. Vinyl siding, shutters, and arear entry door with wood steps
and a gable-roof, frame canopy supported by wood braces has been added. The building houses the mill company
administrative offices.

Cooleemee Cotton Mill ca. 1899-1967  Contributing Building
336 Main Street

One-, two-, and three-story brick factory with arectilinear form and L-plan; Similar in design, construction, and layout to
other North Carolina cotton mills, the Cooleemee Cotton Mill incorporates the features, form and industrial standards

Sections 7 page 63



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
Cooleemee Mill Town Historic District Davie County, NC
Name of Property County and State

known as "slow burn construction.” Elements include thick masonry walls, massive heavy timber wood and/or metal I-
beam structural columns and beams, low pitch/flat roofs, parapet walls and separation of mill functions into self-contained
areas. The Cooleemee mill is comprised of four principal sections which corresponded to specific manufacturing and
finishing operations—the 1899-1900 main mill or cotton mill, the 1900/1908 picker room, the 1905 cloth room/finishing
plant, and the 1963-1967 finishing plant warehouse.

The cotton mill section is at the south end of the complex facing Main Street and NC Highway 801 to the east and parallel
to the South Y adkin River to the west. The three-story, brick rectilinear building has alow-pitch flat roof supported by
heavy timber beams and columns, exterior brick load-bearing walls with tall segmental-arched windows regularly spaced.
The east elevation features a five-story brick centra tower and two four-story brick end towers and is the most prominent
and architecturally detailed portion of the facility. Built in the Romanesque style, the central tower has four centrally
located segmental -arched windows, brick corbelling, arow of six narrow vertical brick recesses and four brick spires at
the tower’ stop corners. The central tower segmental-arch entry door located on the south side is covered with plywood
sheeting and the six segmental-arch side windows are bricked-in on the south and covered by the chiller room addition on
the north. The four-story end towers have double sheet-metal exterior doors, an arched metal entry canopy supported by
triangular steel brackets over the south tower entrance, three paired front segmental-arched windows, six side segmental-
arch windows and pyramidal metal roofs. A m